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PART I
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.    Consolidated Financial Statements
ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Unaudited)

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
(In thousands, except par value amounts)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 777,041 $ 812,705 
Marketable debt securities — 49,995 
Accounts receivable, net of reserves of $28,908 and $27,839, respectively 56,915 43,148 
Other current assets 74,037 71,958 

Total current assets 907,993 977,806 

Capitalized software, leasehold improvements and equipment, net 111,431 108,842 
Goodwill 891,286 891,797 
Intangible assets, net 204,626 209,717 
Other non-current assets 186,253 180,020 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,301,589 $ 2,368,182 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 35,251 30,805 
Deferred revenue 57,675 54,654 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 154,394 148,219 

Total current liabilities 247,320 233,678 

Long-term debt, net 705,987 712,277 
Deferred income taxes 1,315 1,296 
Other long-term liabilities 108,416 111,710 

Redeemable noncontrolling interests 4,608 26,364 

Commitments and contingencies

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Class A common stock, $0.001 par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares; issued 98,408 and 94,283 shares, respectively, and outstanding
82,088 and 78,333, respectively 98 94 
Class B convertible common stock, $0.001 par value; authorized 1,500,000 shares; 421,958 and 421,862 shares issued and outstanding 422 422 
Class C common stock, $0.001 par value; authorized 1,500,000 shares; no shares issued and outstanding — — 
Additional paid-in capital 1,333,294 1,379,469 
Retained earnings 11,680 9,749 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,623 4,637 
Treasury stock, 16,320 and 15,905 shares, respectively (126,997) (122,081)

Total Angi Inc. shareholders’ equity 1,223,120 1,272,290 
Noncontrolling interests 10,823 10,567 

Total shareholders’ equity 1,233,943 1,282,857 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 2,301,589 $ 2,368,182 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

3



Table of Contents

ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $ 387,029 $ 343,650 
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation shown separately below) 53,828 33,229 
Selling and marketing expense 205,840 189,959 
General and administrative expense 88,162 94,556 
Product development expense 18,047 17,084 
Depreciation 15,969 12,138 
Amortization of intangibles 5,074 12,980 

Total operating costs and expenses 386,920 359,946 
Operating income (loss) 109 (16,296)

Interest expense (6,617) (2,274)
Other (expense) income, net (767) 421 
Loss before income taxes (7,275) (18,149)
Income tax benefit 9,289 8,965 
Net earnings (loss) 2,014 (9,184)
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (83) 226 
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders $ 1,931 $ (8,958)

Per share information attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders:
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.00 $ (0.02)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.00 $ (0.02)

Stock-based compensation expense by function:
Selling and marketing expense $ 1,017 $ 1,003 
General and administrative expense 84 22,980 
Product development expense 933 1,592 

Total stock-based compensation expense $ 2,034 $ 25,575 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Net earnings (loss) $ 2,014 $ (9,184)
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment 679 (6,568)
Comprehensive income (loss) 2,693 (15,752)

Components of comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests:
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (83) 226 
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment attributable to noncontrolling interests (693) (46)

Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (776) 180 
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders $ 1,917 $ (15,572)

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
(Unaudited)

Angi Inc. Shareholders’ Equity

Class A
Common Stock

$0.001
Par Value

Class B
Convertible Common

Stock
$0.001

Par Value

Class C
Common Stock

$0.001
Par Value

Total
Angi Inc.

Shareholders’
Equity

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity

Redeemable 
Noncontrolling

Interests
Additional

Paid-in Capital

Retained
Earnings

(Accumulated
Deficit)

Treasury
Stock

Noncontrolling
Interests$ Shares $ Shares $ Shares

(In thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 26,364 $ 94 94,238 $ 422 421,862 $ — — $ 1,379,469 $ 9,749 $ 4,637 $ (122,081) $ 1,272,290 $ 10,567 $ 1,282,857 
Net (loss) earnings (60) — — — — — — — 1,931 — — 1,931 143 2,074 
Other comprehensive income (loss) 580 — — — — — — — — (14) — (14) 113 99 
Stock-based compensation expense — — — — — — — 2,542 — — — 2,542 — 2,542 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to stock-based
awards, net of withholding taxes — 1 1,591 — — — — (48,052) — — — (48,051) — (48,051)
Issuance of common stock to IAC pursuant to the
employee matters agreement — 3 2,579 — 96 — — (3) — — — — — — 
Purchase of treasury stock — — — — — — — — — — (4,916) (4,916) — (4,916)
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (22,938) — — — — — — — — — — — — — 
Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interests
to fair value 662 — — — — — — (662) — — — (662) — (662)

Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ 4,608 $ 98 98,408 $ 422 421,958 $ — — $ 1,333,294 $ 11,680 $ 4,623 $ (126,997) $ 1,223,120 $ 10,823 $ 1,233,943 

Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 26,663 $ 87 87,007 $ 422 421,570 $ — — $ 1,357,075 $ 16,032 $ (1,379) $ (57,949) $ 1,314,288 $ 9,264 $ 1,323,552 
Net (loss) earnings (275) — — — — — — — (8,958) — — (8,958) 49 (8,909)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 99 — — — — — — — — (6,614) — (6,614) (53) (6,667)
Stock-based compensation expense 15 — — — — — — 22,211 — — — 22,211 — 22,211 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to stock-based
awards, net of withholding taxes — 1 617 — — — — (2,553) — — — (2,552) — (2,552)
Issuance of common stock to IAC pursuant to the
employee matters agreement — — — — 187 — — (791) — — — (791) — (791)
Purchase of treasury stock — — — — — — — — — — (38,971) (38,971) — (38,971)
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (3,165) — — — — — — — — — — — — — 
Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interests
to fair value 476 — — — — — — (476) — — — (476) — (476)
Adjustment pursuant to the tax sharing agreement — — — — — — — 3,613 — — — 3,613 — 3,613 

Balance as of March 31, 2020 $ 23,813 $ 88 87,624 $ 422 421,757 $ — — $ 1,379,079 $ 7,074 $ (7,993) $ (96,920) $ 1,281,750 $ 9,260 $ 1,291,010 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings (loss) $ 2,014 $ (9,184)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Stock-based compensation expense 2,034 25,575 
Amortization of intangibles 5,074 12,980 
Provision for credit losses 19,118 17,807 
Depreciation 15,969 12,138 
Deferred income taxes (10,268) (8,348)
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,854 — 
Revenue reserves 2,910 2,140 
Other adjustments, net 2,235 1,076 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions:
Accounts receivable (34,638) (21,226)
Other assets 573 3,043 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 4,539 21,008 
Income taxes payable and receivable 938 (873)
Deferred revenue 2,993 (230)

Net cash provided by operating activities 15,345 55,906 
Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures (18,743) (13,236)
Proceeds from maturities of marketable debt securities 50,000 — 
Net proceeds from the sale of a business — 767 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 31,257 (12,469)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Principal payments on Term Loan (6,875) (3,438)
Purchase of treasury stock (4,916) (38,512)
Withholding taxes paid on behalf of employees on net settled stock-based awards (48,168) (3,222)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (22,938) (3,165)

Net cash used in financing activities (82,897) (48,337)
Total cash used (36,295) (4,900)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 384 (1,327)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (35,911) (6,227)

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 813,561 391,478 
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 777,650 $ 385,251 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1—THE COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Angi Inc. (the “Company”), formerly ANGI Homeservices Inc., connects quality home service professionals with consumers across 500 different categories, from repairing and remodeling
homes to cleaning and landscaping. Over 250,000 domestic service professionals actively sought consumer matches, completed jobs, or advertised work through Angi Inc. platforms; and consumers
turned to at least one of our brands to find a professional for approximately 34 million projects during the twelve months ended March 31, 2021.

The Company has two operating segments (i) North America (United States and Canada), which includes HomeAdvisor, Angi (formerly Angie’s List), Handy, and HomeStars; and (ii) Europe,
which includes Travaux, MyHammer, MyBuilder, Werkspot, and Instapro.

As used herein, “Angi Inc.,” the “Company,” “we,” “our,” “us,” and similar terms refer to Angi Inc. and its subsidiaries (unless the context requires otherwise).

At March 31, 2021, IAC/InterActiveCorp (“IAC”) owned 84.2% and 98.2% of the economic interest and voting interest, respectively, of the Company.

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company, all entities that are wholly-owned by the Company and all entities in which the Company has a controlling financial interest. All intercompany transactions and balances
between and among the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated. All intercompany transactions between (i) Angi Inc. and (ii) IAC and its subsidiaries, with the exception of a promissory
note payable to a foreign subsidiary of IAC, are considered to be effectively settled for cash at the time the transaction is recorded. See “Note 10—Related Party Transactions with IAC” for additional
information on transactions between Angi Inc. and IAC.

For the purpose of these financial statements, income taxes have been computed as if Angi Inc. filed tax returns on a standalone, separate tax return basis. Any differences between taxes currently
payable to or receivable from IAC under the tax sharing agreement between the Company and IAC and the current tax provision computed on an as if standalone, separate return basis for GAAP are
reflected as adjustments to additional paid-in capital and as financing activities within the statement of cash flows.

In management's opinion, the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual consolidated financial statements and reflect all
adjustments, consisting of normal and recurring adjustments, necessary for the fair presentation of the Company's consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations and consolidated
cash flows for the periods presented. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year. The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2020.

COVID-19 Update

The impact on the Company from the COVID-19 outbreak, which has been declared a “pandemic” by the World Health Organization, has been varied and volatile. The extent to which
developments related to the COVID-19 outbreak and measures designed to curb its spread continue to impact the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations will depend on
future developments, all of which are highly uncertain and many of which are beyond the Company’s control, including the continuing spread of COVID-19, the development and implementation of
effective preventative measures (including the global distribution of vaccines) and possible treatments, the scope of governmental and other restrictions on travel, discretionary services (including
those provided by certain of our service professionals) and other activity, and public reactions to these developments. For example, these developments and measures have resulted in rapid and
adverse changes to
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ANGI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

the operating environment in which we do business, as well as significant uncertainty concerning the near and long term economic ramifications of the COVID-19 outbreak, which have adversely
impacted our ability to forecast our results and respond in a timely and effective manner to trends related to the COVID-19 outbreak. The longer the global outbreak and measures designed to curb
the spread of the virus continue to adversely affect levels of consumer confidence, discretionary spending and the willingness of consumers to interact with other consumers, vendors and service
providers face-to-face (and in turn, adversely affect demand for the Company’s various products and services), the greater the adverse impact is likely to be on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations and the more limited will be the Company’s ability to try and make up for delayed or lost revenues. Additionally, many service professionals’ businesses have been
adversely impacted by labor and material constraints and many service professionals have limited capacity to take on new business, which has negatively impacted the Company’s ability to monetize
on increased levels of service requests.

Accounting Estimates

Management of the Company is required to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions during the preparation of its consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions impact the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates and judgments, including those related to: the fair values of cash equivalents and marketable debt securities; the carrying value of
accounts receivable, including the determination of the allowance for credit losses and the determination of revenue reserves; the carrying value of right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”); the useful lives
and recoverability of definite-lived intangible assets and capitalized software, leasehold improvements and equipment; the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets;
unrecognized tax benefits; the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets; and the fair value of and forfeiture rates for stock-based awards, among others. The Company bases its estimates
and judgments on historical experience, its forecasts and budgets and other factors that the Company considers relevant.

General Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised services or goods is transferred to the Company’s customers and in the amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be
entitled to in exchange for those services or goods.

The Company's disaggregated revenue disclosures are presented in “Note 7—Segment Information.”

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of payments that are received or are contractually due in advance of the Company’s performance. The Company classifies deferred revenue as current when the
remaining term of the applicable subscription period or expected completion of the Company’s performance obligation is one year or less. The current and non-current deferred revenue balances at
December 31, 2020 were $54.7 million and $0.2 million, respectively. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company recognized $34.4 million of revenue that was included in the
deferred revenue balance as of December 31, 2020. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recognized $37.1 million of revenue that was included in the deferred revenue
balance as of December 31, 2019. The current and non-current deferred revenue balances at March 31, 2021 are $57.7 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Non-current deferred revenue is included
in “Other long-term liabilities” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Practical Expedients and Exemptions

As permitted under the practical expedient available under ASC 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Company does not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for
(i) contracts with an original expected length of one year or less, (ii) contracts with variable consideration that is allocated entirely to unsatisfied performance obligations or to a wholly unsatisfied
promise accounted for under the series guidance, and (iii) contracts for which the Company recognizes revenue at the amount which the Company has the right to invoice for services performed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

For sales incentive programs where the customer relationship period is one year or less, the Company has elected the practical expedient to expense the costs as incurred. The amount of
capitalized sales commissions where the initial customer relationship period is greater than one year is $49.2 million and $49.6 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The
current and non-current capitalized sales commissions balances are included in “Other current assets” and “Other non-current assets” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and are $48.7
million and $49.2 million, and $0.5 million and $0.4 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recently issued accounting pronouncements that have not yet been adopted that are expected to have a material effect on the results of operations, financial condition or cash flows of
the Company.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

NOTE 2—INCOME TAXES

The Company is included within IAC’s tax group for purposes of federal and consolidated state income tax return filings. In all periods presented, the income tax benefit and/or provision has
been computed for the Company on an as if standalone, separate return basis and payments to and refunds from IAC for the Company’s share of IAC’s consolidated federal and state tax return
liabilities/receivables calculated on this basis have been reflected within cash flows from operating activities in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows. The tax sharing agreement
between the Company and IAC governs the parties’ respective rights, responsibilities and obligations with respect to tax matters, including responsibility for taxes attributable to the Company,
entitlement to refunds, allocation of tax attributes and other matters and, therefore, ultimately governs the amount payable to or receivable from IAC with respect to income taxes. Any differences
between taxes currently payable to or receivable from IAC under the tax sharing agreement and the current tax provision computed on an as if standalone, separate return basis for GAAP are reflected
as adjustments to additional paid-in capital and as financing activities within the statement of cash flows.

At the end of each interim period, the Company estimates the annual expected effective income tax rate and applies that rate to its ordinary year-to-date earnings or loss. The income tax
provision or benefit related to significant, unusual, or extraordinary items, if applicable, that will be separately reported or reported net of their related tax effects are individually computed and
recognized in the interim period in which they occur. In addition, the effect of changes in enacted tax laws or rates, tax status, judgment on the realizability of a beginning-of-the-year deferred tax
asset in future years or unrecognized tax benefits is recognized in the interim period in which the change occurs.

The computation of the annual expected effective income tax rate at each interim period requires certain estimates and assumptions including, but not limited to, the expected pre-tax income (or
loss) for the year, projections of the proportion of income (and/or loss) earned and taxed in foreign jurisdictions, permanent and temporary differences, and the likelihood of the realization of deferred
tax assets generated in the current year. The accounting estimates used to compute the provision or benefit for income taxes may change as new events occur, more experience is acquired, additional
information is obtained or the Company’s tax environment changes. To the extent that the expected annual effective income tax rate changes during a quarter, the effect of the change on prior quarters
is included in income tax provision or benefit in the quarter in which the change occurs.

For the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $9.3 million due primarily to excess tax benefits generated by the exercise and vesting for stock-
based awards. For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $9.0 million, which represents an effective income tax rate of 49% and is higher than the
statutory rate of 21% due primarily to a $5.7 million reduction to deferred taxes due to the true-up of the state tax rate for an indefinite-lived intangible asset, partially offset by unbenefited foreign
losses.

The Company recognizes interest and, if applicable, penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the income tax provision. There are currently no accruals for interest and penalties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

The Company is routinely under audit by federal, state, local and foreign authorities in the area of income tax as a result of previously filed separate company and consolidated tax returns with
IAC. These audits include questioning the timing and the amount of income and deductions and the allocation of income and deductions among various tax jurisdictions. The Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) has substantially completed its audit of IAC’s federal income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2010 through 2017, which includes the operations of the Company. The
statutes of limitations for the years 2010 through 2012 and for the years 2013 through 2017 have been extended to May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2022, respectively. Returns filed in various other
jurisdictions are open to examination for various tax years beginning with 2009. Income taxes payable include unrecognized tax benefits considered sufficient to pay assessments that may result from
examination of prior year tax returns. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating its tax positions and tax benefits, which may not accurately anticipate actual outcomes
and, therefore, may require periodic adjustment. Although management currently believes changes in unrecognized tax benefits from period to period and differences between amounts paid, if any,
upon resolution of issues raised in audits and amounts previously provided will not have a material impact on liquidity, results of operations, or financial condition of the Company, these matters are
subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s view of these matters may change in the future.

At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company has unrecognized tax benefits of $5.6 million and $5.3 million, respectively; all of which are for tax positions included in IAC’s
consolidated tax return filings. If unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2021 are subsequently recognized, the income tax provision would be reduced by $5.4 million. The comparable amount as of
December 31, 2020 is $5.1 million. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that its unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by $0.5 million by March 31, 2022 due to settlements, all of
which would reduce the income tax provision.

NOTE 3—FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Marketable Debt Securities

The Company did not hold any available-for-sale marketable debt securities at March 31, 2021.

At December 31, 2020, current available-for-sale marketable debt securities were as follows:

Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized Gains Gross Unrealized Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)

Treasury discount notes $ 49,995 $ — $ — $ 49,995 
Total available-for-sale marketable debt securities $ 49,995 $ — $ — $ 49,995 

The contractual maturities of debt securities classified as current available-for-sale at December 31, 2020 were within one year.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company categorizes its financial instruments measured at fair value into a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in pricing the asset or liability. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are:

• Level 1: Observable inputs obtained from independent sources, such as quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.

• Level 2: Other inputs, which are observable directly or indirectly, such as quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted market prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data. The fair values of the Company’s Level 2 financial assets are
primarily obtained from observable market prices for identical underlying securities that may not be actively traded. Certain of these securities may have different market prices from multiple market
data sources, in which case an average market price is used.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

• Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data and require the Company to develop its own assumptions, based on the best information available in the
circumstances, about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.

The following tables present the Company’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

March 31, 2021
Quoted Market Prices in

Active Markets for Identical
Assets (Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs (Level 2)

Significant Unobservable
Inputs 

(Level 3)

Total 
Fair Value 

Measurements
(In thousands)

Assets:
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 552,024 $ — $ — $ 552,024 
Treasury discount notes — 100,000 — 100,000 
Time deposits — 1,586 — 1,586 

Marketable debt securities:
Treasury discount notes — — — — 

Total $ 552,024 $ 101,586 $ — $ 653,610 

December 31, 2020
Quoted Market Prices in

Active Markets for Identical
Assets (Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs (Level 2)

Significant Unobservable
Inputs 

(Level 3)

Total 
Fair Value 

Measurements
(In thousands)

Assets:
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds $ 374,014 $ — $ — $ 374,014 
Treasury discount notes — 324,995 — 324,995 
Time deposits — 2,721 — 2,721 

Marketable debt securities:
Treasury discount notes — 49,995 — 49,995 

Total $ 374,014 $ 377,711 $ — $ 751,725 

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis

The Company’s non-financial assets, such as goodwill, intangible assets, ROU assets, capitalized software, leasehold improvements and equipment are adjusted to fair value only when an
impairment is recognized. Such fair value measurements are based predominantly on Level 3 inputs.
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Financial instruments measured at fair value only for disclosure purposes

The following table presents the carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value only for disclosure purposes:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

(In thousands)

Long-term debt, net $ (705,987) $ (710,692) $ (712,277) $ (725,700)
________________________

At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the carrying value of long-term debt, net includes unamortized debt issuance costs of $7.1 million and $7.7 million, respectively.

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated using observable market prices or indices for similar liabilities, which are Level 2 inputs.

NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of:

 March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
 (In thousands)

3.875% ANGI Group Senior Notes due August 15, 2028 (“Senior Notes”); interest payable each February 15 and August 15,
commencing February 15, 2021 $ 500,000 $ 500,000 
ANGI Group Term Loan due November 5, 2023 213,125 220,000 
Total long-term debt 713,125 720,000 

Less: unamortized debt issuance costs 7,138 7,723 
Total long-term debt, net $ 705,987 $ 712,277 

ANGI Group Senior Notes

The ANGI Group Senior Notes were issued on August 20, 2020. At any time prior to August 15, 2023, these notes may be redeemed at a redemption price equal to the sum of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest and a make-whole premium. Thereafter, these notes may be redeemed at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the applicable redemption date.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes contains a covenant that would limit ANGI Group’s ability to incur liens for borrowed money in the event a default has occurred or ANGI Group’s
secured leverage ratio (as defined in the indenture) exceeds 3.75 to 1.0. At March 31, 2021, there were no limitations pursuant thereto.

ANGI Group Term Loan and ANGI Group Revolving Facility

The outstanding balance of the ANGI Group Term Loan was $213.1 million and $220.0 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. During the three months ended March
31, 2021, ANGI Group prepaid $6.9 million that was otherwise due in the first quarter of 2022, and as of May 6, 2021, the outstanding balance was repaid in its entirety. The Term Loan bore interest
at LIBOR plus 2.00%, or 2.10% and 2.16% at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

The ANGI Group Credit Agreement requires ANGI Group to maintain a consolidated net leverage ratio of not more than 4.5 to 1.0 and a minimum interest coverage ratio of not less than 2.0 to
1.0. The ANGI Group Credit Agreement also contains covenants that would limit ANGI Group’s ability to pay dividends, or make distributions in the event a default has occurred or ANGI Group’s
consolidated net leverage ratio exceeds 4.25 to 1.0. At March 31, 2021, there were no limitations pursuant thereto.

(a)

(a)    
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The $250.0 million ANGI Group Revolving Facility expires on November 5, 2023. At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there were no outstanding borrowings under the ANGI Group
Revolving Facility. The commitment fee, which is based on ANGI Group's consolidated net leverage ratio most recently reported and the average daily dollar amount of the available revolving
commitments, was 35 basis points at both March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Any future borrowings under the ANGI Group Revolving Facility would bear interest, at ANGI Group’s option, at
either a base rate or LIBOR, in each case plus an applicable margin, which is based on ANGI Group’s consolidated net leverage ratio. The financial and other covenants are the same as those for the
ANGI Group Term Loan.

The ANGI Group Senior Notes and the ANGI Group Credit Agreement are guaranteed by certain of ANGI Group’s wholly-owned material domestic subsidiaries and ANGI Group’s obligations
under the ANGI Group Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all assets of ANGI Group and the guarantors, subject to certain exceptions. Outstanding borrowings under the ANGI Group
Revolving Facility have priority over the ANGI Group Senior Notes to the extent of the value of the assets securing the borrowings under the ANGI Group Credit Agreement.

Long-term Debt Maturities:

Long-term debt maturities as of March 31, 2021 are summarized in the table below:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

2022 $ 20,625 
2023 192,500 
2028 500,000 
Total 713,125 

Less: unamortized debt issuance costs 7,138 
Total long-term debt, net $ 705,987 

NOTE 5—ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following tables present the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021
Foreign 

Currency 
Translation 
Adjustment

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

(In thousands)

Balance at January 1 $ 4,637 $ 4,637 
Other comprehensive loss (14) (14)

Balance at March 31 $ 4,623 $ 4,623 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2020
Foreign 

Currency 
Translation 
Adjustment

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss

(In thousands)

Balance at January 1 $ (1,379) $ (1,379)
Other comprehensive loss (6,614) (6,614)

Balance at March 31 $ (7,993) $ (7,993)
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At both March 31, 2021 and 2020, there was no tax benefit or provision on the accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

NOTE 6—EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Angi Inc. Class A and Class B Common Stock shareholders:

 Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
 Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
 (In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Net earnings (loss) $ 2,014 $ 2,014 $ (9,184) $ (9,184)
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (83) (83) 226 226 

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. Class A and Class B Common Stock
shareholders $ 1,931 $ 1,931 $ (8,958) $ (8,958)

Denominator:
Weighted average basic Class A and Class B common stock shares outstanding 500,663 500,663 499,454 499,454 
Dilutive securities — 9,990 — — 

 Denominator for earnings (loss) per share—weighted average shares 500,663 510,653 499,454 499,454 

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Angi Inc. Class A and Class B Common Stock shareholders:
Earnings (loss) per share $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ (0.02) $ (0.02)

________________________

If the effect is dilutive, weighted average common shares outstanding include the incremental shares that would be issued upon the assumed exercise of stock appreciation rights, stock options and subsidiary denominated equity and vesting
of restricted stock units (“RSUs”). For the three months ended March 31, 2021, 5.2 million potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have been anti-
dilutive.

Market-based awards and performance-based stock units are considered contingently issuable shares. Shares issuable upon exercise or vesting of market-based awards and performance-based stock units are included in the denominator for
earnings per share if (i) the applicable performance or market condition(s) has been met and (ii) the inclusion of the market-based award and performance-based stock units is dilutive for the respective reporting periods. For the three
months ended March 31, 2021, 1.4 million shares underlying market-based awards and performance-based stock awards were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the performance or market condition(s) had
not been met.

For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company had a loss from operations and as a result, approximately 38.0 million potentially dilutive securities were excluded from computing dilutive earnings per share because the impact
would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, the weighted average basic shares outstanding were used to compute all earnings per share amounts.

NOTE 7—SEGMENT INFORMATION

The overall concept that the Company employs in determining its operating segments is to present the financial information in a manner consistent with how the chief operating decision maker
views the businesses. In addition, we consider how the businesses are organized as to segment management; and the focus of the businesses with regards to the types of services or products offered or
the target market.

(a) (b) (c)

(a)    

(b)    

(c)    
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The following table presents revenue by reportable segment:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)
Revenue:

North America $ 361,041 $ 324,132 
Europe 25,988 19,518 

Total $ 387,029 $ 343,650 

The following table presents the revenue of the Company’s segments disaggregated by type of service:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)

North America
Marketplace:

Consumer connection revenue $ 272,353 $ 239,830 
Service professional membership subscription revenue 11,952 13,777 
Other revenue 6,745 5,169 

Total Marketplace revenue 291,050 258,776 
Advertising and other revenue 69,991 65,356 

Total North America revenue 361,041 324,132 
Europe
Consumer connection revenue 22,351 15,689 
Service professional membership subscription revenue 3,328 3,299 
Advertising and other revenue 309 530 

Total Europe revenue 25,988 19,518 
Total revenue $ 387,029 $ 343,650 

________________________

Includes fees paid by service professionals for consumer matches and revenue from Angi Services sourced through the marketplace platforms.

Includes Angi revenue from service professionals under contract for advertising and Angi membership subscription fees from consumers, as well as revenue from HomeStars.

    Includes fees paid by service professionals for consumer matches.

Revenue by geography is based on where the customer is located. Geographic information about revenue and long-lived assets is presented below.

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)
Revenue
United States $ 356,444 $ 319,821 
All other countries 30,585 23,829 

Total $ 387,029 $ 343,650 

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)    

(b)    

(c)
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March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
(In thousands)

Long-lived assets (excluding goodwill and intangible assets):
United States $ 101,151 $ 97,841 
All other countries 10,280 11,001 

Total $ 111,431 $ 108,842 

The following tables present operating income (loss) and Adjusted EBITDA by reportable segment:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)
Operating income (loss):

North America $ 9,577 $ (8,108)
Europe (9,468) (8,188)

Total $ 109 $ (16,296)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)
Adjusted EBITDA :
North America $ 31,165 $ 41,391 
Europe $ (7,979) $ (6,994)

________________________

The Company’s primary financial measure is Adjusted EBITDA, which is defined as operating income (loss) excluding: (1) stock-based compensation expense; (2) depreciation; and (3) acquisition-related items consisting of amortization
of intangible assets and impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, if applicable. The Company believes this measure is useful for analysts and investors as this measure allows a more meaningful comparison between the Company’s
performance and that of its competitors. The above items are excluded from the Company’s Adjusted EBITDA measure because these items are non-cash in nature. Adjusted EBITDA has certain limitations because it excludes the impact
of these expenses.

(d)

(d)    
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The following tables reconcile operating income (loss) for the Company’s reportable segments and net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders to Adjusted EBITDA:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021

Operating Income (Loss)
Stock-Based

Compensation Expense Depreciation
Amortization
of Intangibles

Adjusted
EBITDA

(In thousands)

North America $ 9,577 $ 1,936 $ 14,578 $ 5,074 $ 31,165 
Europe (9,468) $ 98 $ 1,391 $ — $ (7,979)

Operating income (loss) 109 
Interest expense (6,617)
Other loss, net (767)
Loss before income taxes (7,275)
Income tax benefit 9,289 
Net earnings 2,014 
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests (83)
Net earnings attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders $ 1,931 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2020

Operating Loss
Stock-Based

Compensation Expense Depreciation
Amortization
of Intangibles

Adjusted
EBITDA

(In thousands)

North America $ (8,108) $ 25,312 $ 11,297 $ 12,890 $ 41,391 
Europe (8,188) $ 263 $ 841 $ 90 $ (6,994)

Operating loss (16,296)
Interest expense (2,274)
Other income, net 421 
Loss before income taxes (18,149)
Income tax benefit 8,965 
Net loss (9,184)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 226 
Net loss attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders $ (8,958)
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NOTE 8—CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT DETAILS

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash:

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the accompanying balance sheet to the total amounts shown in the accompanying
statement of cash flows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 777,041 $ 812,705 $ 384,230 $ 390,565 
Restricted cash included in other current assets 176 407 623 504 
Restricted cash included in other non-current assets 433 449 398 409 

Total cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash as shown on the
consolidated statement of cash flows $ 777,650 $ 813,561 $ 385,251 $ 391,478 

Restricted cash included in other current assets at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consisted of cash reserved to fund insurance claims and cash received from customers through the
marketplace platforms, representing funds collected for payments to service providers, which were not settled as of the period end.

Restricted cash included in other current assets at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 primarily consisted of a deposit related to corporate credit cards.

Restricted cash included in other non-current assets at March 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of deposits related to leases.

Credit Losses and Revenue Reserve

The following table presents the changes in the credit loss reserve for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
(In thousands)

Balance at January 1 $ 26,046 $ 19,066 
Current period provision for credit losses 19,118 17,070 
Write-offs charged against the credit loss reserve (20,570) (16,298)
Recoveries collected 758 737 
Balance at March 31 $ 25,352 $ 20,575 

The revenue reserve was $3.5 million and $1.8 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The total allowance for credit losses and revenue reserve was $28.9 million and $22.4 million as
of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Accumulated Amortization and Depreciation

The following table provides the accumulated amortization and depreciation within the consolidated balance sheet:
Asset Category March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
 (In thousands)
Right-of-use assets (included in “other non-current assets”) $ 46,446 $ 40,800 
Capitalized software, leasehold improvements, and equipment $ 80,052 $ 95,438 
Intangible assets, net $ 148,319 $ 162,627 
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Other (expense) income, net

Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
 (In thousands)
Interest income $ 97 $ 1,271 
Foreign exchange losses (860) (423)
Loss from acquisition/sale of a business (4) (427)
Other (expense) income, net $ (767) $ 421 

Loss from acquisition/sale of a business for the three months ended March 31, 2020 includes a $0.2 million mark-to-market charge for an indemnification claim related to the Handy acquisition
that was settled in Angi Inc. shares during the first quarter of 2020 and a $0.2 million charge related to the final earn-out settlement related to the sale of Felix.

NOTE 9—CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is a party to various lawsuits. The Company establishes reserves for specific legal matters when it determines that the likelihood of an
unfavorable outcome is probable and the loss is reasonably estimable. Management has not identified certain other legal matters where we believe an unfavorable outcome is probable and, therefore,
no reserve is established. Although management currently believes that resolving claims against us, including claims where an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible, will not have a material
impact on the liquidity, results of operations, or financial condition of the Company, these matters are subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s view of these matters may change in the
future. The Company also evaluates other contingent matters, including income and non-income tax contingencies, to assess the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and estimated extent of
potential loss. It is possible that an unfavorable outcome of one or more of these lawsuits or other contingencies could have a material impact on the liquidity, results of operations, or financial
condition of the Company. See “Note 2—Income Taxes” for additional information related to income tax contingencies.

NOTE 10—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH IAC

Angi Inc. and IAC have entered into certain agreements to govern their relationship. These agreements include: a contribution agreement; an investor rights agreement; a services agreement; a
tax sharing agreement; and an employee matters agreement.

For the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the company was charged $1.1 million and $1.2 million, respectively, by IAC for services rendered pursuant to the services agreement. At
March 31, 2021, the Company had outstanding payables of less than $0.1 million due to IAC, pursuant to the services agreement. There were no outstanding receivables or payables pursuant to the
services agreement as of December 31, 2020.

Separately, the Company subleases office space to IAC and charged IAC $0.4 million of rent for both the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020. At March 31, 2021, there were no
outstanding receivables pursuant to the sublease agreements. At December 31, 2020 there was an outstanding receivable of less than $0.1 million due from IAC pursuant to the sublease agreements,
which was subsequently paid in full in the first quarter of 2021.

At both March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding payables of $0.9 million, due to IAC pursuant to the tax sharing agreement, which are included in “Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities,” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. There were no payments to or refunds from IAC pursuant to this agreement during the three months ended
March 31, 2021 and 2020.

For the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, 0.1 million and 0.2 million shares, respectively, of Angi Inc. Class B common stock were issued to IAC pursuant to the employee matters
agreement as reimbursement for shares of IAC common stock issued in connection with the exercise and vesting of IAC equity awards held by Angi Inc. employees. For the three months ended
March 31, 2021, 2.6 million shares of Angi Inc. Class A common stock were issued to IAC pursuant to the
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employee matters agreement as reimbursement for IAC common stock, issued in connection with the exercise and settlement of certain Angi Inc. stock appreciation rights. There were no shares of
Angi Inc. Class A common stock issued during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

NOTE 11—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As of May 6, 2021, the Company paid off the outstanding balance of the Term Loan of $213.1 million.
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Item 2.    Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

GENERAL

Management Overview

Angi Inc., formerly ANGI Homeservices, Inc., (“Angi Inc.,” the “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us”) connects quality home service professionals with consumers across 500 different categories,
from repairing and remodeling homes to cleaning and landscaping. Over 250,000 domestic service professionals actively sought consumer matches, completed jobs, or advertised work through Angi
Inc. platforms; and consumers turned to at least one of our brands to find a professional for approximately 34 million projects during the twelve months ended March 31, 2021.

The Company has two operating segments (i) North America (United States and Canada), which includes HomeAdvisor, Angi (formerly Angie’s List), Handy, and HomeStars; and (ii) Europe,
which includes Travaux, MyHammer, MyBuilder, Werkspot, and Instapro.

For a more detailed description of the Company’s operating businesses, see the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Defined Terms and Operating Metrics:

Unless otherwise indicated or as the context requires otherwise certain terms, which include the principal operating metrics we use in managing our business, used in this quarterly report are
defined below:

• Marketplace Revenue primarily reflects domestic marketplace revenues, including consumer connection revenue for consumer matches, revenue from Angi Services (pre-priced) offerings
sourced through marketplace platforms, and membership subscription revenue from service professionals.

• Advertising and Other Revenue primarily includes revenue from service professionals under contract for advertising and membership subscription fees from consumers.

• Marketplace Service Requests are fully completed and submitted domestic customer service requests and includes Angi Services requests sourced through the marketplace platforms in
the period.

• Marketplace Monetized Transactions are fully completed and submitted domestic customer service requests that were matched to and paid for by a service professional and includes
completed and in-process Angi Services jobs sourced through the marketplace platforms in the period.

• Marketplace Transacting Service Professionals (“Marketplace Transacting SPs”) are the number of marketplace service professionals that paid for consumer matches or performed an
Angi Services job sourced through the marketplace platforms in the quarter.

• Advertising Service Professionals (“Advertising SPs”) are the total number of service professionals under contract for advertising at the end of the period.

• Senior Notes - On August 20, 2020, ANGI Group, LLC (“ANGI Group”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $500.0 million of its 3.875% Senior Notes due August
15, 2028, with interest payable February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing February 15, 2021.

• ANGI Group Term Loan - due November 5, 2023. The outstanding balance of the Term Loan as of March 31, 2021 was $213.1 million and bore interest at LIBOR plus 2.00%, or 2.10%.
As of May 6, 2021, the outstanding balance of the Term Loan was repaid in its entirety.

• ANGI Group Revolving Facility - The ANGI Group $250.0 million revolving credit facility expires on November 5, 2023. At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there were no
outstanding borrowings under the ANGI Group Revolving Facility. The ANGI Group Revolving Facility and ANGI Group Term Loan are collectively referred to as the ANGI Group Credit
Agreement.
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Components of Results of Operations

Sources of Revenue

Marketplace Revenue is primarily derived from (i) consumer connection revenue, which comprises fees paid by service professionals for consumer matches (regardless of whether the service
professional ultimately provides the requested service) and revenue from completed jobs sourced through the marketplace platforms and (ii) service professional membership subscription fees.
Consumer connection revenue varies based upon several factors, including the service requested, product experience offered, and geographic location of service. Advertising and Other Revenue is
primarily derived from (i) sales of time-based website, mobile, and call center advertising to service professionals, and (ii) membership subscription fees from consumers.

Operating Costs and Expenses:

• Cost of revenue - consists primarily of payments made to independent service professionals who perform work contracted under pre-priced arrangements through the marketplace
platforms, credit card processing fees, and hosting fees.

• Selling and marketing expense - consists primarily of advertising expenditures, which include online marketing, including fees paid to search engines, offline marketing, which is
primarily television advertising, and partner-related payments to those who direct traffic to our brands, compensation expense (including stock-based compensation expense) and other
employee-related costs for our sales force and marketing personnel, and facilities costs.

• General and administrative expense - consists primarily of compensation expense (including stock-based compensation expense) and other employee-related costs for personnel engaged
in executive management, finance, legal, tax, human resources and customer service functions, fees for professional services (including transaction-related costs related to acquisitions),
provision for credit losses, software license and maintenance costs, and facilities costs. Our customer service function includes personnel who provide support to our service professionals
and consumers.

• Product development expense - consists primarily of compensation expense (including stock-based compensation expense) and other employee-related costs that are not capitalized for
personnel engaged in the design, development, testing and enhancement of product offerings and related technology, software license and maintenance costs, and facilities costs.

Non-GAAP financial measure

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”) is a non-GAAP financial measure. See “Principles of Financial Reporting” for the
definition of Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders to operating income (loss) to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA for the three months
ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

Brand Integration Initiative

On March 17, 2021, our Company updated one of its leading websites and brands, Angie’s List, to Angi, and began the process of consolidating under a single brand. Going forward we will
concentrate our marketing investment in the Angi brand in order to focus our marketing, sales, and branding efforts on a single brand.

Our Company relies heavily on free and paid search engine marketing efforts to drive traffic to our properties, which has been adversely affected by this initiative. Specifically, our brand
initiative has adversely affected the placement and ranking of Angi Inc. websites, particularly Angi.com, in organic search results as Angi does not have the same domain history as Angie’s List. In
addition, we shifted marketing to support Angi, away from HomeAdvisor, which has negatively affected the efficiency of our search engine marketing efforts.

These efforts have had a pronounced negative impact on Marketplace Service Requests from organic search results, and reduced monetization via our mobile applications, which in turn has
resulted in relatively more Marketplace Service Requests from paid search engine marketing. The combined effect has reduced revenue and increased marketing spend, which we expect to result in
lower profits in the quarter ending June 30, 2021. We expect this trend to continue until such time as the new brand establishes search engine optimization ranking and consumer awareness is
established. We expect the reduction in revenue,
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increased marketing expense, and lower profits to continue for the remainder of 2021 and potentially into 2022, with the most significant impact in the second quarter of 2021. The Company has also
increased its investment in Angi Services, our pre-priced product offering, which will reduce profits more than planned during 2021.

COVID-19 Update

The impact on the Company from the COVID-19 outbreak, which has been declared a “pandemic” by the World Health Organization, has been varied and volatile. The extent to which
developments related to the COVID-19 outbreak and measures designed to curb its spread continue to impact the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations will depend on
future developments, all of which are highly uncertain and many of which are beyond the Company’s control, including the continuing spread of COVID-19, the development and implementation of
effective preventative measures (including the global distribution of vaccines) and possible treatments, the scope of governmental and other restrictions on travel, discretionary services (including
those provided by certain of our service professionals) and other activity, and public reactions to these developments. For example, these developments and measures have resulted in rapid and
adverse changes to the operating environment in which we do business, as well as significant uncertainty concerning the near and long term economic ramifications of the COVID-19 outbreak, which
have adversely impacted our ability to forecast our results and respond in a timely and effective manner to trends related to the COVID-19 outbreak. The longer the global outbreak and measures
designed to curb the spread of the virus continue to adversely affect levels of consumer confidence, discretionary spending and the willingness of consumers to interact with other consumers, vendors
and service providers face-to-face (and in turn, adversely affect demand for the Company’s various products and services), the greater the adverse impact is likely to be on the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations and the more limited will be the Company’s ability to try and make up for delayed or lost revenues.

When COVID-19 first impacted us in March 2020, we experienced a decline in demand for service requests, driven primarily by decreases in demand in certain categories of jobs (particularly
discretionary indoor projects). During the second quarter of 2020, we experienced a rebound in service requests, exceeding pre-COVID-19 growth levels, driven by increased demand from
homeowners who spent more time at home due to measures taken to reduce the spread of COVID-19. The Company continued to experience strong demand for home services in the second half of
2020 and the first quarter of 2021. However, many service professionals’ businesses have been adversely impacted by labor and material constraints and many service professionals have limited
capacity to take on new business, which has negatively impacted our ability to monetize this increased level of service requests.
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Results of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2020

Revenue

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Revenue:
Marketplace:

Consumer connection revenue $ 272,353 $ 32,523 14% $ 239,830 
Service professional membership subscription revenue 11,952 (1,825) (13)% 13,777 
Other revenue 6,745 1,576 30% 5,169 

Total Marketplace Revenue 291,050 32,274 12% 258,776 
Advertising and Other Revenue 69,991 4,635 7% 65,356 

North America 361,041 36,909 11% 324,132 
Europe 25,988 6,470 33% 19,518 

Total Revenue $ 387,029 $ 43,379 13% $ 343,650 

Percentage of Total Revenue:
North America 93 % 94 %
Europe 7 % 6 %

Total Revenue 100 % 100 %

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Operating metrics:
Marketplace Service Requests 7,709 1,741 29% 5,968 
Marketplace Monetized Transactions 4,193 603 17% 3,590 
Marketplace Transacting SPs 212 21 11% 191 
Advertising SPs 40 3 8% 37 

North America revenue increased $36.9 million, or 11%, driven by increases in Marketplace Revenue of $32.3 million or 12%, and Advertising and Other Revenue of $4.6 million, or 7%. The
increase in Marketplace Revenue is due to an increase in consumer connection revenue of $32.5 million, or 14%, due primarily to an increase of 29% in Marketplace Service Requests to 7.7 million,
resulting in a 17% increase in Marketplace Monetized Transactions to 4.2 million. The increase in Advertising and Other Revenue is due primarily to an increase in Angi revenue driven by a 8%
increase in Advertising SPs.

Europe revenue increased $6.5 million, or 33%, due to strong growth across its markets due to increased consumer demand and the favorable impact of the weakening of the U.S dollar relative to
the Euro and the British Pound.

Cost of revenue

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation shown separately below) $ 53,828 $ 20,599 62% $ 33,229 
As a percentage of revenue 14% 10%

North America cost of revenue increased $20.7 million, or 63%, and as a percentage of revenue due primarily to growth of Angi Services (the pre-priced product offering) which has lower
margins than other sources of North America revenue.
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Selling and marketing expense

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Selling and marketing expense $ 205,840 $ 15,881 8% $ 189,959 
As a percentage of revenue 53% 55%

North America selling and marketing expense increased $16.7 million, or 10%, driven by increases in compensation expense of $9.0 million, advertising expense of $6.0 million, and outsourced
personnel and consulting costs of $2.5 million. The increase in compensation expense was due primarily to increased commission expense, in addition to an increase in sales force headcount. The
increase in advertising expense was due primarily to an increase in online marketing, partially offset by a decrease in television spend. The increase in outsourced personnel and consulting costs was
due primarily to various sales initiatives in Angi Services.

Europe selling and marketing expense decreased $0.8 million, or 6%, driven by a decrease in compensation expense of $0.6 million from lower headcount and a decrease in advertising of $0.1
million.

General and administrative expense

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

General and administrative expense $ 88,162 $ (6,394) (7)% $ 94,556 
As a percentage of revenue 23% 28%

North America general and administrative expense decreased $13.2 million, or 15%, due primarily to a decrease of $20.0 million in compensation expense, partially offset by increases in
professional fees of $3.0 million, provision for credit loss of $1.3 million, and software license and maintenance costs of $0.8 million. The decrease in compensation expense is due to a decrease of
$22.7 million in stock-based compensation expense, partially offset by an increase of $2.8 million primarily resulting from annual wage increases. The decrease in stock-based compensation expense
for the first quarter of 2021 is due primarily to $11.9 million for stock appreciation rights expense recognized in the first quarter of 2020 which were not incurred in 2021 as the awards became fully
vested in 2020, a net decrease of $7.7 million due to the reversal of previously recognized expense related to unvested awards that were forfeited due to management departures in the first quarter of
2021, partially offset by the issuance of new equity awards since 2020. The increase in professional fees is due primarily to an increase in outsourced personnel costs and legal fees. The increase in
outsourced personnel costs is due primarily to an increase in call volume related to our customer service function. The increase in provision for credit loss is driven by higher Marketplace Revenue.

Europe general and administrative expense increased $6.8 million, or 88%, due primarily to a charge of $6.0 million related to the acquisition of an additional 21% interest in our MyBuilder
business at a premium to fair value, and a $0.6 million increase in professional fees related to the platform migration in France.

Product development expense

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Product development expense $ 18,047 $ 963 6% $ 17,084 
As a percentage of revenue 5% 5%

North America product development expense decreased $0.5 million, or 3%, due primarily to decreases in compensation expense of $0.8 million and travel related expenses of $0.2 million,
partially offset by an increase in outsourced personnel and consulting costs of $0.5 million. The increase in outsourced personnel and consulting costs were in support of projects for the Angi brand
change.

26



Table of Contents

Europe product and development expense increased $1.5 million, or 51%, due to an increase in compensation expense of $1.5 million as a result of fewer internally developed software expenses
being capitalized.

Depreciation

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Depreciation $ 15,969 $ 3,831 32% $ 12,138 
As a percentage of revenue 4% 4%

North America depreciation increased $3.3 million, or 29%, due primarily to investments in capitalized software to support our products and services.

Europe depreciation increased $0.5 million, or 65%, due primarily to the continued development of capitalized software to support our products and services.

Operating income (loss)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

North America $ 9,577 $ 17,685 NM $ (8,108)
Europe (9,468) (1,280) (16)% (8,188)

Total $ 109 $ 16,405 NM $ (16,296)

As a percentage of revenue —% (5)%

________________________

NM = Not meaningful

North America operating income was $9.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021, an increase of $17.7 million compared to the three months ended March 31, 2020, despite a
decrease in Adjusted EBITDA of $10.2 million, described below, due primarily to decreases of $23.4 million in stock-based compensation expense and $7.9 million in amortization of intangibles,
partially offset by an increase of $3.8 million in depreciation. The decrease in stock-based compensation expense was due primarily to the factors discussed in the general and administrative expense
section above. The decrease in the amortization of intangibles was due primarily to certain intangible assets becoming fully amortized during 2020. The increase in depreciation was due primarily to
the development of capitalized software to support our products and services.

Europe operating loss increased $1.3 million, or 16%, due primarily to an increase in Adjusted EBITDA loss of $1.0 million, described below and an increase of $0.2 million in stock-based
compensation expense, partially offset by a decrease of $0.1 million in amortization of intangibles.

At March 31, 2021, there is $89.5 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to all equity-based awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of approximately 2.7 years.
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Adjusted EBITDA

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

North America $ 31,165 $ (10,226) (25)% $ 41,391 
Europe (7,979) (985) (14)% (6,994)

Total $ 23,186 $ (11,211) (33)% $ 34,397 

 As a percentage of revenue 6% 10%

For a reconciliation of net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders to operating income (loss) to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA, see “Principles of Financial Reporting.” For a
reconciliation of operating income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the Company’s reportable segments, see “Note 7—Segment Information” to the consolidated financial statements included in “Item
1. Consolidated Financial Statements.”

North America Adjusted EBITDA decreased $10.2 million, or 25%, to $31.2 million, despite higher revenue, due primarily to an increase of $20.6 million in cost of revenue and an increase of
$15.9 million in selling and marketing expense, both described above. This was also impacted by $4.0 million in expense related to impairments in Fixd Services business and from management
changes at the Company.

Europe Adjusted EBITDA loss increased $1.0 million, or 14%, due primarily to a charge of $6.0 million related to the acquisition of an additional 21% interest in MyBuilder at a premium to fair
value and the increase in product development expense of $1.5 million, partially offset by an increase of $6.5 million in revenue.

Interest expense

Interest expense relates to interest on the Senior Notes and Term Loan and commitment fees on the undrawn Revolving Facility.

For a detailed description of long-term debt, net, see “Note 4—Long-term Debt” to the consolidated financial statements included in “Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Interest expense $ 6,617 $ 4,343 NM $ 2,274 

Interest expense increased due primarily to the issuance of the Senior Notes in August 2020, partially offset by a decrease in interest expense of the Term Loan due primarily to lower interest
rates due to lower interest rates and the decrease in the average outstanding balance compared to the prior year period.

Other (expense) income, net

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Other (expense) income, net $ (767) $ (1,188) NM $ 421 

Other expense, net in 2021 principally includes net foreign currency exchange losses of $0.9 million, partially offset by interest income of $0.1 million.

Other income, net in 2020 principally includes interest income of $1.3 million, partially offset by net foreign currency exchange losses of $0.4 million and a $0.2 million mark-to-market charge
for an indemnification claim related to the Handy acquisition that was settled in Angi Inc. shares during the first quarter of 2020.
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Income tax benefit

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 $ Change % Change 2020

Income tax benefit $ 9,289 $ 324 4% $ 8,965 
Effective income tax rate NM 49%

For further details of income tax matters, see “Note 2—Income Taxes” to the consolidated financial statements included in “Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements.”

In 2021, the income tax benefit was due primarily to excess tax benefits generated by the exercise and vesting for stock-based awards.

In 2020, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $9.0 million, which represented an effective tax rate of 49%. The effective income tax rate was higher than the statutory rate of 21% due
primarily to a $5.7 million reduction to deferred taxes due to the true-up of the state tax rate of an indefinite-lived intangible asset, partially offset by unbenefited foreign losses.
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PRINCIPLES OF FINANCIAL REPORTING

We report Adjusted EBITDA as a supplemental measure to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). This measure is one of the primary metrics by which we evaluate the
performance of our businesses, on which our internal budgets are based and by which management is compensated. We believe that investors should have access to, and we are obligated to provide,
the same set of tools that we use in analyzing our results. This non-GAAP measure should be considered in addition to results prepared in accordance with GAAP, but should not be considered a
substitute for or superior to GAAP results. We endeavor to compensate for the limitations of the non-GAAP measure presented by providing the comparable GAAP measure with equal or greater
prominence and descriptions of the reconciling items, including quantifying such items, to derive the non-GAAP measure. We encourage investors to examine the reconciling adjustments between the
GAAP and non-GAAP measure, which we discuss below.

Definition of Non-GAAP Measure

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”) is defined as operating income excluding: (1) stock-based compensation expense;
(2) depreciation; and (3) acquisition-related items consisting of amortization of intangible assets and impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, if applicable. We believe this measure is useful for
analysts and investors as this measure allows a more meaningful comparison between our performance and that of our competitors. The above items are excluded from our Adjusted EBITDA
measure because these items are non-cash in nature. Adjusted EBITDA has certain limitations because it excludes the impact of these expenses.

The following table reconciles net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders to operating income (loss) to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA:

 Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
 (In thousands)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Angi Inc. shareholders $ 1,931 $ (8,958)
Add back:

Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 83 (226)
Income tax benefit (9,289) (8,965)
Other expense (income), net 767 (421)
Interest expense 6,617 2,274 

Operating income (loss) 109 (16,296)
Stock-based compensation expense 2,034 25,575 
Depreciation 15,969 12,138 
Amortization of intangibles 5,074 12,980 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 23,186 $ 34,397 

For a reconciliation of operating income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the Company’s reportable segments, see “Note 7—Segment Information” to the consolidated financial statements
included in “Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Non-Cash Expenses That Are Excluded from Non-GAAP Measure

Stock-based compensation expense consists of expense associated with the grants, including unvested grants assumed in acquisitions, of stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units (“RSUs”),
stock options, performance-based RSUs (“PSUs”) and market-based awards. These expenses are not paid in cash and we view the economic costs of stock-based awards to be the dilution to our share
base; we also include the related shares in our fully diluted shares outstanding for GAAP earnings per share using the treasury stock method. PSUs and market-based awards are included only to the
extent the applicable performance or market condition(s) have been met (assuming the end of the reporting period is the end of the contingency period). The Company is currently settling all stock-
based awards on a net basis and remits the required tax-withholding amounts from its current funds.

Depreciation is a non-cash expense relating to our capitalized software, leasehold improvements and equipment and is computed using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of depreciable
assets to operations over their estimated useful lives, or, in the case of leasehold improvements, the lease term, if shorter.
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Amortization of intangible assets and impairments of goodwill and intangible assets are non-cash expenses related primarily to acquisitions. At the time of an acquisition, the identifiable definite-
lived intangible assets of the acquired company, such as service professional relationships, technology, memberships, customer lists and user base, and trade names, are valued and amortized over
their estimated lives. Value is also assigned to acquired indefinite-lived intangible assets, which comprise trade names and trademarks, and goodwill that are not subject to amortization. An
impairment is recorded when the carrying value of an intangible asset or goodwill exceeds its fair value. We believe that intangible assets represent costs incurred by the acquired company to build
value prior to acquisition and the related amortization and impairments of intangible assets or goodwill, if applicable, are not ongoing costs of doing business.
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Financial Position

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents and marketable debt securities:
United States $ 756,860 $ 793,679 
All other countries 20,181 19,026 

Total cash and cash equivalents 777,041 812,705 
Marketable debt securities (United States) — 49,995 
Total cash and cash equivalents and marketable debt securities $ 777,041 $ 862,700 

Long-term debt:
Senior Notes $ 500,000 $ 500,000 
Term Loan 213,125 220,000 

Total long-term debt 713,125 720,000 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs 7,138 7,723 

Total long-term debt, net $ 705,987 $ 712,277 

The Company’s international cash can be repatriated without significant tax consequences.

For a detailed description of long-term debt, see “Note 4—Long-term Debt” to the consolidated financial statements included in “Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements.” As of May 6, 2021,
the outstanding balance of the Term Loan of $213.1 million was repaid in its entirety.

Cash Flow Information

In summary, the Company’s cash flows are as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

(In thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 15,345 $ 55,906 
Investing activities 31,257 (12,469)
Financing activities (82,897) (48,337)

Net cash provided by operating activities consists of earnings adjusted for non-cash items and the effect of changes in working capital. Non-cash adjustments include stock-based compensation
expense, provision for credit losses, amortization of intangibles, depreciation, and deferred income taxes.

2021

Adjustments to earnings consist primarily of $19.1 million of provision for credit losses, $16.0 million of depreciation, $5.1 million of amortization of intangibles, $2.9 million of revenue
reserves, and $2.0 million of stock-based compensation expense, partially offset by $10.3 million of deferred income taxes. The decrease from changes in working capital consists primarily of
increases in accounts receivable of $34.6 million, partially offset by increases in accounts payable and other liabilities of $4.5 million and deferred revenue of $3.0 million. The increase in accounts
payable and other liabilities is due primarily to an increase in accrued advertising and related payables. The increase in deferred revenue is driven primarily by increases in memberships. The increase
in accounts receivable is due primarily to revenue growth in North America.
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Net cash provided by investing activities includes proceeds of $50.0 million from the maturities of marketable debt securities, net of capital expenditures of $18.7 million, primarily related to
investments in the development of capitalized software to support the Company’s products and services.

Net cash used in financing activities includes $48.2 million for the payment of withholding taxes on behalf of employees for stock-based awards that were net settled, $22.9 million for the
purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests, $6.9 million for the prepayment on the Term Loan required quarterly payments that was otherwise due in the first quarter of 2022, and $4.9 million
for the repurchase of 0.4 million shares of Angi Inc. Class A common stock, on a settlement and trade date basis, at an average price of $11.85 per share.

2020

Adjustments to earnings consist primarily of $25.6 million of stock-based compensation expense, $17.8 million of bad debt expense, $13.0 million of amortization of intangibles, and $12.1
million of depreciation, partially offset by $8.3 million of deferred income taxes. The deferred income tax benefit primarily relates to an adjustment to deferred taxes resulting from a true-up of the
state tax rate. The increase from changes in working capital consists primarily of an increase in accounts payable and other liabilities of $21.0 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts
receivable of $21.2 million. The increase in accounts payable and other liabilities is primarily due to an increase in accrued advertising and related payables. The increase in accounts receivable is
primarily due to revenue growth in North America.

Net cash provided by investing activities includes capital expenditures of $13.2 million, primarily related to investments in the development of capitalized software to support the Company's
products and services and leasehold improvements.

Net cash used in financing activities includes $38.5 million for the repurchase of 5.2 million shares of Angi Inc. Class A common stock, on a settlement date basis, at an average price of $7.43
per share, $3.4 million for the principal payment on the Term Loan, $3.2 million for the payment of withholding taxes on behalf of employees for stock-based awards that were net settled, and $3.2
million for the purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Financing Arrangements

The outstanding balance of the Term Loan as of March 31, 2021 was $213.1 million and bore interest at LIBOR plus 2.00%, or 2.10%. As of May 6, 2021, the outstanding balance of the Term
Loan was repaid in its entirety.

On August 20, 2020, ANGI Group issued $500.0 million of its Senior Notes due August 15, 2028, with interest payable February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing February 15, 2021.
The proceeds from the offering are being used for general corporate purposes, which may include potential future acquisitions and return of capital.

The Credit Facility of $250 million expires on November 5, 2023. At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there were no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. The commitment
fee, which is based on ANGI Group's consolidated net leverage ratio most recently reported and the average daily dollar amount of the available revolving commitments, was 35 basis points at both
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at ANGI Group’s option, at either a base rate or LIBOR, in each case plus an applicable margin, which is
determined based on ANGI Group’s consolidated net leverage ratio. Any borrowings under the ANGI Group Credit Facility are guaranteed by ANGI Group's wholly-owned material domestic
subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all assets of ANGI Group and the guarantors, subject to certain exceptions.

The terms of the Credit Facility require Angi Inc. to maintain a consolidated net leverage ratio of not more than 4.5 to 1.0 and a minimum interest coverage ratio of not less than 2.0 to 1.0. There
are additional covenants under the Credit Facility that limit the ability of ANGI Group and its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur indebtedness, pay dividends or make distributions.

Share Repurchase Authorizations and Activity

During the quarter ended March 31, 2021, the Company repurchased 0.4 million shares, on a settlement and trade date basis, of its common stock at an average price of $11.85 per share. The
Company had 18.9 million shares remaining in its share repurchase authorization as of March 31, 2021. The Company may purchase shares over an indefinite period of time
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on the open market and in privately negotiated transactions, depending on those factors Angi Inc. management deems relevant at any particular time without limitation, market conditions, share
price and future outlook.

Outstanding Stock-based Awards

The Company may settle equity awards on a gross or a net basis upon factors deemed relevant at the time. Certain Angi stock appreciation rights are settleable, at the Company’s option, on a net
basis with Angi remitting withholding taxes on behalf of the employee or on a gross basis with the Company issuing a sufficient number of Class A shares to cover the withholding taxes. In addition,
at IAC/InterActiveCorp’s (“IAC”) option, these awards can be settled in either Class A shares of Angi or shares of IAC common stock. If settled in IAC common stock, the Company reimburses IAC
in either cash or through the issuance of Class A shares to IAC. The Company currently settles all equity awards on a net basis.

Pursuant to the employee matters agreement, in the event of a distribution of Angi capital stock to IAC stockholders in a transaction intended to qualify as tax-free for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, the Compensation Committee of the IAC Board of Directors has the exclusive authority to determine the treatment of outstanding IAC equity awards. Such authority includes (but is not
limited to) the ability to convert all or part of IAC equity awards outstanding immediately prior to the distribution into equity awards denominated in shares of Angi Class A Common Stock, which
Angi would be obligated to assume and which would be dilutive to Angi’s stockholders.

The following table summarizes the aggregate intrinsic value of all awards outstanding as of April 30, 2021; assuming these awards were net settled on that date, the withholding taxes that
would be paid by the Company on behalf of employees upon exercise or vesting that would be payable (assuming these equity awards are net settled with a 50% tax rate), and the shares that would
have been issued are as follows:

Aggregate intrinsic value of awards
outstanding

Estimated withholding taxes payable Estimated shares to be issued

(In thousands) (Shares in thousands)

Stock appreciation rights $ 15,283 $ 7,642 477 
Other equity awards 167,304 82,432 5,301 
Total outstanding employee stock-based awards $ 182,587 $ 90,074 5,778 

_______________

(a) Includes stock options, RSUs, and subsidiary denominated equity.

(b) The number of shares ultimately needed to settle subsidiary denominated equity awards and the cash withholding tax obligation may vary significantly as a result of the determination of the fair value of the relevant award at the time of
exercise. In addition, the number of shares required to settle these awards will be impacted by movement in the Company’s stock price.

Capital Expenditures

The Company’s 2021 capital expenditures are expected to be higher than 2020 capital expenditures of $52.5 million by approximately 50% to 60%, due primarily to increased investment in
capitalized software to support the development of our products and services.

Liquidity Assessment

The Company’s liquidity could be negatively affected by a decrease in demand for its products and services due to COVID-19 or other factors. As described in the “COVID-19 Update” section
above, to date, the COVID-19 outbreak and measures designed to curb its spread have adversely impacted the Company’s business. The longer the global outbreak and measures designed to curb the
spread of the COVID-19 outbreak have adverse impacts on economic conditions generally, the greater the adverse impact is likely to be on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
operations. The Company believes it has ample access to capital to navigate current and coming economic pressures.

The Company’s indebtedness could limit its ability to: (i) obtain additional financing to fund working capital needs, acquisitions, capital expenditures or debt service or other requirements; and
(ii) use operating cash flow to make certain acquisitions or investments, in the event a default has occurred or, in certain circumstances, if its leverage ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility and Term
Loan) exceeds the ratios set forth in the Term Loan. There were no such limitations at March 31,

(a)
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2021. The Company’s ability to obtain additional financing may also be impacted by any disruptions in the financial markets caused by COVID-19 or otherwise.

The Company believes its existing cash, cash equivalents, available borrowings under the Credit Facility and expected positive cash flows generated from operations will be sufficient to fund its
normal operating requirements, including capital expenditures, debt service, the payment of withholding taxes paid on behalf of employees for net-settled stock-based awards, and investing and other
commitments, for the foreseeable future.

At March 31, 2021, IAC held all Class B shares of Angi Inc., which represent 84.2% of the economic interest and 98.2% of the voting interest of the Company. As a result, IAC has the ability to
control Angi Inc.’s financing activities, including the issuance of additional debt and equity securities by Angi Inc. or any of its subsidiaries, or the incurrence of other indebtedness generally. While
Angi Inc. is expected to have the ability to access debt and equity markets if needed, such transactions may require the approval of IAC due to its control of the majority of the outstanding voting
power of Angi Inc.’s capital stock and its representation on the Angi Inc. board of directors. Additional financing may not be available on terms favorable to the Company or at all.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, there have been no material changes to the Company’s contractual obligations since the disclosure in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2020.
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Item 3.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, there have been no material changes to the Company’s instruments or positions that are sensitive to market risk since the disclosure in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Item 4.    Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoing basis its disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting in order to improve their overall effectiveness. In the
course of these evaluations, the Company modifies and refines its internal processes as conditions warrant.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), the Company’s management, including our principal executive and principal
financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined by Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act.
Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report in providing reasonable
assurance that information we are required to disclose in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms, and include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

There were no changes to the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Overview
In the ordinary course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries are (or may become) parties to litigation involving property, personal injury, contract, intellectual property and other claims,

as well as stockholder derivative actions, class action lawsuits and other matters. The amounts that may be recovered in such matters may be subject to insurance coverage. Although the results of
legal proceedings and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is currently a party to any legal proceedings, the outcome of which, we believe, if
determined adversely to us, would individually or in the aggregate have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission require the description of material pending legal proceedings (other than ordinary, routine litigation incident to the registrant’s business) and
advise that proceedings ordinarily need not be described if they primarily involve damages claims for amounts (exclusive of interest and costs) not exceeding 10% of the current assets of the
registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. In the judgment of Company management, none of the pending litigation matters which we are defending, including the one described below,
involves or is likely to involve amounts of that magnitude. The litigation matter described below involves issues or claims that may be of particular interest to our stockholders, regardless of whether
this matter may be material to our financial position or operations based upon the standard set forth in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

FTC Investigation of Certain HomeAdvisor Business Practices

On April 19, 2021, the staff of the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) informed HomeAdvisor that upon investigation it believes that certain of the company’s business practices relating to leads
provided to service professionals and its mHelpDesk product are unfair or deceptive in violation of the FTC Act. The staff proposed to resolve its potential claims via a consent judgment mandating
certain business practice changes (and an unspecified payment amount) and invited the company to engage in settlement discussions to resolve the matter. While HomeAdvisor believes that any such
claims would be without merit and is prepared to defend vigorously against any enforcement proceeding, the company has opened a dialogue with the staff to discuss the matter.

Service Professional Class Action Litigation against HomeAdvisor   

This purported class action pending in Colorado is described in detail on page 27 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. See Airquip, Inc. et al. v.
HomeAdvisor, Inc. et al., No. l:16-cv-1849 and Costello et al. v. HomeAdvisor, Inc. et al., No. 1:18-cv-1802, both filed in U.S. District Court in Colorado and consolidated under the caption In re
HomeAdvisor, Inc. Litigation. This lawsuit alleges that our HomeAdvisor business engages in certain deceptive practices affecting the service professionals who join its network, including charging
them for substandard customer leads or failing to disclose certain charges. There have been no material or otherwise noteworthy developments in this case since the filing of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. The Company believes that the allegations in this lawsuit are without merit and will continue to defend vigorously against them.
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Item 1A.    Risk Factors

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The use of words such as “anticipates,”
“estimates,” “expects,” “plans” and “believes,” among others, generally identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include, among others, statements relating to the
Company’s future financial performance, business prospects and strategy, anticipated trends and prospects in home services industry and other similar matters. These forward-looking statements are
based on Company management's current expectations and assumptions about future events, which are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to
predict.

Actual results could differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements for a variety of reasons, including, among others: (i) the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on our
businesses, (ii) our ability to compete, (iii) the failure or delay of the home services market to migrate online, (iv) adverse economic events or trends (particularly those that adversely impact
consumer confidence and spending behavior), (v) our ability to establish and maintain relationships with quality service professionals, (vi) our ability to build, maintain and/or enhance our various
brands, (vii) our ability to market our various products and services in a successful and cost-effective manner, (viii) the continued display of links to websites offering our products and services in a
prominent manner in search results, (ix) our continued ability to communicate with consumers and service professionals via e-mail (or other sufficient means), (x) our ability to access, share and use
personal data about consumers, (xi) our ability to develop and monetize versions of our products and services for mobile and other digital devices, (xii) any challenge to the contractor classification or
employment status of our Handy service professionals, (xiii) our ability to protect our systems, technology and infrastructure from cyberattacks and to protect personal and confidential user
information, (xiv) the occurrence of data security breaches, fraud and/or additional regulation involving or impacting credit card payments, (xv) the integrity, efficiency and scalability of our
technology systems and infrastructures (and those of third parties with whom we do business), (xvi) operational and financial risks relating to acquisitions and the integration of suitable targets, (xvii)
our ability to operate (and expand into) international markets successfully, (xviii) our ability to adequately protect our intellectual property rights and not infringe the intellectual property rights of
third parties, (xix) changes in key personnel, (xx) various risks related to our relationship with IAC and (xxi) various risks related to our outstanding indebtedness.

Certain of these and other risks and uncertainties are discussed in our filings with the SEC, including in Part I-Item 1A-Risk Factors of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2020. Other unknown or unpredictable factors that could also adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results may arise from time to time. In light of these risks
and uncertainties, the forward-looking statements discussed in this quarterly report may not prove to be accurate. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which only reflect the views of Company management as of the date of this quarterly report. We do not undertake to update these forward-looking statements.

Risk Factors

Our changes in executive management may not result in growth of our business or enhance stockholder value, and our transition to a new Chief Executive Officer and search for a permanent
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Marketing Officer may not be successful.

On December 9, 2020, the Company announced the resignation of Jamie Cohen, Chief Financial Officer and the appointment of Glenn H. Schiffman as Interim Chief Financial Officer, while
the Company initiated a national search for a permanent replacement. Craig Smith’s resignation from the Board and as Chief Operating Officer became effective on December 18, 2020. On February
24, 2021, the Company announced the appointment of Oisin Hanrahan as Chief Executive Officer, following the resignation of William B. Ridenour and Allison Lowrie, Chief Marketing Officer. Our
executive management team is critical to the overall management of the Company and also plays a key role in maintaining our culture and setting our strategic direction. These recent changes in our
executive management and composition of the Board, may cause or result in: disruption of our business and operations; difficulty recruiting, hiring, motivating and retaining talented and skilled
personnel; departures of other members of management; increased stock price volatility; and difficulty in establishing, maintaining or negotiating business or strategic relationships or transactions.
Furthermore, the transition to a new Chief Executive Officer and permanent Chief Financial Officer and Chief Marketing Officer could be a distraction to our executive management, business
operations, service professionals and customers. The search could also result in significant recruiting and relocation costs. If we fail to successfully and timely attract and appoint executive officers
with the appropriate level of expertise, we could experience adverse impacts on our business and results of operations.
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Our Angi brand integration initiative may involve substantial costs, including as a result of a continued negative impact on our organic search placement, and may not be favorably received by
customers and service professionals.

On March 17, 2021, our Company updated one of its leading websites and brands, Angie’s List, to Angi, and began concentrating its marketing investment in the Angi brand in order to focus
our marketing, sales, and branding efforts on a single brand.

We may incur substantial costs as a result of our brand integration initiative and may not be able to achieve or maintain brand name recognition or status that is comparable to the recognition
and status previously enjoyed by Angie’s List, and our customers and service professionals may be confused as we transition and focus on the Angi brand as against our other brands. Our Company
relies heavily on free and paid search engine marketing efforts to drive traffic to our properties, which has been adversely affected by this initiative. Specifically, our brand initiative has adversely
affected the placement and ranking of Angi Inc. websites, particularly Angi.com, in organic search results as Angi does not have the same domain history as Angie’s List. In addition, we shifted
marketing to support Angi, away from HomeAdvisor, which has negatively affected the efficiency of our search engine marketing efforts, and which in turn reduced revenue and increased marketing
spend that is expected to result in lower profits for the quarter ending June 30, 2021. This trend is expected to continue for the remainder of 2021 (and potentially into 2022), with the most significant
impact expected in the second quarter of 2021. Any or all of these impacts could continue to increase our marketing costs (particularly if free traffic is replaced with paid traffic) and adversely affect
the effectiveness of our marketing efforts overall. Finally, as we align and focus the organization around a single brand, we could experience financial and operational challenges, including a
distracted salesforce and reduced service professional participation across our various product lines. Depending on market acceptance, our brand integration initiative could adversely affect our ability
to attract and retain customers and service professionals, which could cause us not to realize some or all of the anticipated benefits contemplated by the brand integration initiative.

Item 2.    Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

The employee matters agreement dated as of September 29, 2017, by and between us and IAC, provides, among other things, that we will reimburse IAC for the cost of certain equity awards held
by our current and former employees and that IAC may elect to receive payment either in cash or shares of our Class B common stock.

Pursuant to the employee matters agreement, 2,579,264 shares of Class A common stock and 96,031 shares of Class B common stock were issued to IAC on March 31, 2021 as reimbursement
for shares of IAC common stock issued in connection with the settlement of certain equity awards held by our employees during the quarter ended March 31, 2021. This issuance did not involve any
underwriters or public offerings and we believe that such issuance was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), pursuant to Section
4(a)(2) thereof.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth purchases by the Company of its Class A common stock during the quarter ended March 31, 2021:
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Period

(a)
Total Number of Shares

Purchased

(b)
Average Price Paid Per

Share

(c)
Total Number of Shares

Purchased as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or

Programs

(d)
Maximum Number of Shares
that May Yet Be Purchased

Under Publicly
Announced

Plans or
Programs

January 2021 414,720 $ 11.85 414,720 18,856,841 
February 2021 — $ — — 18,856,841 
March 2021 — $ — — 18,856,841 

Total 414,720 $ 11.85 414,720 18,856,841 

________________________________________
(1) Reflects repurchases made pursuant to the share repurchase authorizations previously announced in March 2020 and February 2019.

(2) Represents the total number of shares of Class A common stock that remained available for repurchase as of March 31, 2021 pursuant to the March 2020 and February 2019 share repurchase authorizations. The Company may repurchase
shares pursuant to this share repurchase authorization over an indefinite period of time in the open market and in privately negotiated transactions, depending on those factors Company management deems relevant at any particular time,
including, without limitation, market conditions, share price and future outlook.

(1) (2)
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Item 6.    Exhibits

The documents set forth below, numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K, are filed herewith, incorporated by reference to the location indicated or furnished herewith.
Exhibit

Number Description Location
3.1 Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of

Angi Inc.
Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on

March 17, 2021.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Angi Inc. Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
March 17, 2021.

4.1 Form of Angi Inc. Common Stock Certificate. (1)
10.1 Employment Agreement between Oisin Hanrahan and ANGI Homeservices Inc., dated as

of February 24, 2021.(3)
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on

February 25, 2021.

10.2 Employment Agreement between Kulesh Shanmugasundaram and Angi Inc., dated as of
March 25, 2021. (1) (3)

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002. (1)

31.2 Certification of the Interim Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (2)

32.2 Certification of the Interim Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (2)

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance (1) The instance document does not appear in the interactive data file
because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema (1)
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation (1)
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition (1)
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels (1)
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation (1)

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

_______________________________________________________________________________

(1) Filed herewith.

(2) Furnished herewith.

(3) Reflects management contracts and management and director compensatory plans.

43

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1705110/000170511021000033/angihomeservicesinc-dexc.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1705110/000170511021000033/amendedandrestatedbylawsof.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1705110/000110465921027884/tm217844d1_ex10-1.htm


Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

Dated: May 7, 2021
Angi Inc.

By: /s/ GLENN H. SCHIFFMAN
Glenn H. Schiffman

Interim Chief Financial Officer

Signature Title  Date
    

/s/ GLENN H. SCHIFFMAN Interim Chief Financial Officer  May 7, 2021
Glenn H. Schiffman
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Exhibit 10.2

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between 
Kulesh Shanmugasundaram (“Executive”) and Angi Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and is effective as of March 25, 2021 (the “Effective Date”).

WHEREAS, the Company desires to establish its right to the services of Executive, in the capacity described below, on the terms and conditions hereinafter
set forth, and Executive is willing to accept such employment on such terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, Executive and the Company have agreed and do hereby agree as
follows:

1A.    EMPLOYMENT. During the Term (as defined below), the Company shall employ Executive, and Executive shall be employed, as Chief Technology Officer of
Angi Inc. During Executive’s employment with the Company, Executive shall do and perform all services and acts necessary or advisable to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities as are commensurate and consistent with Executive’s position and shall render such services on the terms set forth herein. During Executive’s
employment with the Company, Executive shall report directly to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Reporting Officer”).
Executive shall have such powers and duties with respect to the Company as may reasonably be assigned to Executive by the Reporting Officer, to the extent
consistent with Executive’s position. Executive agrees to devote all of Executive’s working time, attention and efforts to the Company and to perform the duties of
Executive’s position in accordance with the Company’s policies as in effect from time to time. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary above, Executive may
participate in civic and charitable activities, and may serve as member of the board of directors of such entities as may be approved from time to time in advance by
the Reporting Officer, so long as such activities do not conflict with or interfere with Executive’s performance of his duties hereunder or compete with or present an
actual or apparent conflict of interest for the Company, which shall be determined by the Reporting Officer and/or the Chief Legal Officer of Angi Inc. in his/her
good faith judgment.

2A.    TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate on the first anniversary thereof (the “Initial Term”); provided,
that certain terms and conditions herein may specify a greater period of effectiveness; and further provided that this Agreement shall automatically renew for
additional one year terms (each a “Renewal Term”, and collectively with the Initial Term, the “Term”), unless terminated by either party with written notice provided
not less than ninety (90) days prior to the end of the then-current Term or Renewal Term (a “Notice of Non-Renewal”).

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Executive’s employment with the Company is “at-will” and may be terminated at any
time for any reason or no reason, with or without cause, by the Company or Executive, with or without notice. During the Term, Executive’s right to payments upon
certain terminations of employment is governed by Section 1(d) of the Standard Terms and Conditions attached hereto. Following the expiration



of the Term, upon the termination of Executive’s employment, the Company shall have no further obligation hereunder, except for the payment of Accrued
Obligations.

3A.    COMPENSATION.

i.BASE SALARY. During the period that Executive is employed with the Company hereunder, the Company shall pay Executive an annual base salary of
$400,000 (the “Base Salary”), payable in equal biweekly installments (or, if different, in accordance with the Company’s payroll practice as in effect from time to
time), which Base Salary may be increased, from time to time, as approved by the Compensation and Human Resources Committee of the Board. For all purposes
under this Agreement, the term “Base Salary” shall refer to the Base Salary as in effect from time to time.

i.DISCRETIONARY BONUS. During the period that Executive is employed with the Company hereunder, Executive shall be eligible to receive discretionary
annual bonuses (the “Annual Bonuses”). The Annual Bonuses shall be of a target amount equal to 50% of your Base Salary, and shall in all cases to be determined by
the Compensation and Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Compensation Committee”) in its sole discretion, based on the
factors it deems relevant, which may include, among other factors, the Company’s performance against various criteria (including its competition, its prior year
results, achievement of established initiatives, etc.) and the contribution and performance of Executive.

(c)    EQUITY AWARD. On the Effective Date, Executive shall be granted, under and subject to the provisions of the Company’s 2017 Stock and Annual
Incentive Plan (the “2017 Plan”), an award of Company Restricted Stock Units (the “RSU Award”) with a grant date value of $2,000,000. The actual vesting and
other terms and conditions of the RSU Award will be governed by the award notices and related terms and conditions attached as Exhibit A and the 2017 Plan.
Executive shall remain eligible for future equity grants during the Term of his employment with the Company.

(d)    BENEFITS. From the Effective Date through the date of termination of Executive’s employment with the Company for any reason, Executive shall be
entitled to participate in any welfare, health and life insurance and pension benefit programs as may be adopted from time to time by the Company on the same basis
as that provided to similarly situated employees of the Company. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Executive shall be entitled to the following
benefits:

1. Reimbursement for Business Expenses. During the period that Executive is employed with the Company hereunder, the Company shall
reimburse Executive for all reasonable, necessary and documented expenses incurred by Executive in performing Executive’s duties for the Company, on the
same basis as similarly situated employees generally and in accordance with the Company’s policies as in effect from time to time; and
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2. Vacation. During the period that Executive is employed with the Company hereunder, Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation each year, in
accordance with the plans, policies, programs and practices of the Company applicable to similarly situated employees of the Company generally.

4A.    NOTICES. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by first-class mail, certified or registered with
return receipt requested, or by hand delivery, or by overnight delivery by a nationally recognized carrier, in each case to the applicable address set forth below, and
any such notice is deemed effectively given when received by the recipient (or if receipt is refused by the recipient, when so refused):

If to the Company:        Angi Inc.
3601 Walnut St, Suite 700
Denver CO, 80205
Attention: Chief Legal Officer

With a copy to:
IAC/InterActiveCorp
555 West 18  Street, 6  Floor
New York, NY 10011
Attention: General Counsel

If to Executive:    At the most recent address for Executive on file at the Company.

Either party may change such party’s address for notices by notice duly given pursuant hereto.

5A.    GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Agreement and the legal relations thus created between the parties hereto (including, without limitation, any
dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement) shall be governed by and construed under and in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Colorado
without reference to its principles of conflicts of laws. Any such dispute will be heard and determined before an appropriate federal court located in the State of
Colorado in Denver County, or, if not maintainable therein, then in an appropriate Colorado state court located in Denver County, and each party hereto submits itself
and its property to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the foregoing courts with respect to such disputes. Each party hereto (i) agrees that service of process may be
made by mailing a copy of any relevant document to the address of the party set forth above, (ii) waives to the fullest extent permitted by law any objection which it
may now or hereafter have to the courts referred to above on the grounds of inconvenient forum or otherwise as regards any dispute between the parties hereto arising
out of or related to this Agreement, (iii) waives to the fullest extent permitted by law any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue in the
courts referred to above as regards any dispute between the parties hereto arising out of or related to this Agreement and (iv) agrees that a judgment or order of any
court referred to above in connection with any dispute between the parties hereto arising out of or related to this Agreement is conclusive and binding on it and may
be enforced against it in the courts of any other jurisdiction.

th th
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6A.    COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

7A.    STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS. Executive expressly understands and acknowledges that the Standard Terms and Conditions attached hereto are
incorporated herein by reference, deemed a part of this Agreement and are binding and enforceable provisions of this Agreement. References to “this Agreement” or
the use of the term “hereof” shall refer to this Agreement and the Standard Terms and Conditions attached hereto, taken as a whole.

[The Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed and delivered by its duly authorized officer and Executive has executed
and delivered this Agreement on the Effective Date.

Angi Inc.

    /s/ Oisin Hanrahan    
By: Oisin Hanrahan
Title: CEO

/s/ Kulesh Shanmugasundaram    
Kulesh Shanmugasundaram



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. TERMINATION OF EXECUTIVE’S EMPLOYMENT.

(a)    DEATH. In the event Executive’s employment hereunder is terminated by reason of Executive’s death, the Company shall pay Executive’s designated
beneficiary or beneficiaries, within thirty (30) days of Executive’s death in a lump sum in cash, (i) Executive’s Base Salary through the end of the month in which
death occurs and (ii) any other Accrued Obligations (as defined in paragraph 1(f) below).

(b)    DISABILITY. If, as a result of Executive’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness (“Disability”), Executive shall have been absent from the full-
time performance of Executive’s duties with the Company for a period of four (4) consecutive months and, within thirty (30) days after written notice is provided to
Executive by the Company (in accordance with Section 4A hereof), Executive shall not have returned to the full-time performance of Executive’s duties, Executive’s
employment under this Agreement may be terminated by the Company for Disability. During any period prior to such termination during which Executive is absent
from the full-time performance of Executive’s duties with the Company due to Disability, the Company shall continue to pay Executive’s Base Salary at the rate in
effect at the commencement of such period of Disability, offset by any amounts payable to Executive under any disability insurance plan or policy provided by the
Company. Upon termination of Executive’s employment due to Disability, the Company shall pay Executive within thirty (30) days of such termination (i)
Executive’s Base Salary through the end of the month in which termination occurs in a lump sum in cash, offset by any amounts payable to Executive under any
disability insurance plan or policy provided by the Company; and (ii) any other Accrued Obligations (as defined in paragraph 1(f) below).

i.TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. Upon the termination of Executive’s employment by the Company for Cause (as defined below), the Company shall have no
further obligation hereunder, except for the payment of any Accrued Obligations (as defined in paragraph 1(f) below). As used herein, “Cause” shall mean: (i) the
plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, or conviction for, the commission of a felony offense by Executive; provided, however, that after indictment, the Company may
suspend Executive from the rendition of services, but without limiting or modifying in any other way the Company’s obligations under this Agreement; (ii) a material
breach by Executive of a fiduciary duty owed to the Company; (iii) a material breach by Executive of any of the covenants made by Executive in Section 2 hereof;
(iv) the willful or gross neglect by Executive of the material duties required by this Agreement; or (v) a violation by Executive of any Company policy pertaining to
ethics, wrongdoing or conflicts of interest; provided, that in the case of conduct described in clauses (iii), (iv) or (v) above which is capable of being cured, Executive
shall have a period of fifteen (15) days after Executive is provided with written notice thereof in which to cure.



ii.TERMINATION BY THE COMPANY OTHER THAN FOR DEATH, DISABILITY OR CAUSE; RESIGNATION BY EXECUTIVE FOR GOOD
REASON. If Executive’s employment hereunder is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term by the Company for any reason other than Executive’s death or
Disability or for Cause or if Executive resigns for Good Reason (as defined below) prior to the expiration of the Term, then

(i)     the Company shall continue to pay to Executive the Base Salary for 12 months from the date of such termination or resignation (“Severance
Period”), payable in equal biweekly installments (or, if different, in accordance with the Company’s payroll practice as in effect from time to time) over the
course of such twelve (12) months;

(ii)     any compensation awards of Executive based on, or in the form of, Company equity (e.g., restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock options or
similar instruments) that are outstanding and unvested at the time of such termination but which would, but for such termination, have vested during the
Severance Period shall vest as of the date of such termination of employment; provided that for these purposes, any equity awards with a vesting schedule less
frequent than annual shall be treated as though the vesting occurred in equal annual installments and any portion of any such awards that would have vested
by the end of the Severance Period (including any portion which would have vested prior to the date of termination of employment) shall vest as of the date of
such termination of employment (e.g., if 100 restricted stock units were granted 1.7 years prior to the date of termination with a 5-year cliff vesting term then
on the date of termination 40 of such units would vest); provided, further, that with respect to any awards subject to performance vesting requirements, the
vesting of such awards shall in all events be subject to the satisfaction of the applicable performance goals; and

(iii) any then-vested options or stock appreciation rights of Executive (including any such awards vesting as a result of (ii) above) to acquire Company
equity shall remain exercisable through the earlier of (A) the scheduled expiration date of such awards and (B) eighteen months following Executive’s
termination of employment; and

(iv)     the Company shall pay Executive within thirty (30) days of the date of such termination or resignation in a lump sum in cash any Accrued
Obligations (as defined in paragraph 1(f) below).

For clarification purposes, the terms and treatment of all compensation awards based on, or in the form of, IAC/InteractiveCorp equity that are held by
Executive, both vested and unvested, shall be governed under the terms of the IAC award agreements applicable thereto, and this Agreement shall have no impact on
such IAC equity-based awards.

 
The payment to Executive of the severance benefits described in this Section 1(d) shall be subject to Executive’s execution and non-revocation of a general

release of the Company and its affiliates, in a form substantially similar to that used for similarly situated executives of the Company and its affiliates, such general
release to be executed and promptly delivered to the Company (and in no event later than 21 days following Executive’s termination of employment, or such longer
period as may be required by applicable law) and Executive’s compliance with the
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restrictive covenants set forth in Section 2 hereof. Such release shall make clear that Executive is not releasing his right to receive any termination benefits pursuant
to this Section 1(d) above and/or under any equity incentive plan governing any outstanding equity award then held by Executive. Executive acknowledges and
agrees that the severance benefits described in this Section 1(d) constitute good and valuable consideration for such release.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following without Executive’s prior written consent: (A) the reduction in
Executive’s Base Salary constituting a material diminution in Executive’s base compensation as determined for purposes of Section 409A and regulations thereunder,
(B) a material diminution in Executive’s title, duties or level of responsibilities as compared to those in effect as of the Effective Date, excluding for this purpose any
such change that is an isolated and inadvertent action not taken in bad faith and that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of notice thereof given by the
Executive, (C) the relocation of Executive’s principal place of employment to a location that is greater than fifty (50) miles away from the greater New York
metroplitan area; provided, however, that in no event shall Executive’s resignation be for “Good Reason” unless (x) an event or circumstance set forth in clauses (A)
through (C) above shall have occurred and Executive provides the Company with written notice thereof within thirty (30) days after Executive has initial knowledge
of the occurrence or existence of such event or circumstance, which notice specifically identifies the event or circumstance that Executive believes constitutes Good
Reason, (y) the Company fails to correct the event or circumstance so identified within thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice and (z) Executive resigns
within ninety (90) days after the date of delivery of the notice referred to in (x) above.

Section 280G; Parachute Payments.

i.If any payment or benefit Executive will or may receive from the Company or otherwise (a “280G Payment”) would (i) constitute a “parachute
payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code, and (ii) but for this sentence, be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the
“Excise Tax”), then any such 280G Payment provided pursuant to this Agreement (a “Payment”) shall be equal to the Reduced Amount. The “Reduced Amount”
shall be either (x) the largest portion of the Payment that would result in no portion of the Payment (after reduction) being subject to the Excise Tax or (y) the largest
portion, up to and including the total, of the Payment, whichever amount (i.e., the amount determined by clause (x) or by clause (y)), after taking into account all
applicable federal, state and local employment taxes, income taxes, and the Excise Tax (all computed at the highest applicable marginal rate), results in Executive’s
receipt, on an after-tax basis, of the greater economic benefit notwithstanding that all or some portion of the Payment may be subject to the Excise Tax. If a reduction
in a Payment is required pursuant to the preceding sentence and the Reduced Amount is determined pursuant to clause (x) of the preceding sentence, the reduction
shall occur in the manner (the “Reduction Method”) that results in the greatest economic benefit for Executive. If more than one method of reduction will result in the
same economic benefit, the items so reduced will be reduced pro rata (the “Pro Rata Reduction Method”).

3



ii.Notwithstanding any provision of subsection (a) above to the contrary, if the Reduction Method or the Pro Rata Reduction Method would result in any
portion of the Payment being subject to taxes pursuant to Section 409A that would not otherwise be subject to taxes pursuant to Section 409A, then the Reduction
Method and/or the Pro Rata Reduction Method, as the case may be, shall be modified so as to avoid the imposition of taxes pursuant to Section 409A as follows: (i)
as a first priority, the modification shall preserve to the greatest extent possible, the greatest economic benefit for Executive as determined on an after-tax basis; (ii) as
a second priority, Payments that are contingent on future events (e.g., being terminated without Cause), shall be reduced (or eliminated) before Payments that are not
contingent on future events; and (iii) as a third priority, Payments that are “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A shall be reduced (or
eliminated) before Payments that are not deferred compensation within the meaning of Section 409A.

iii.Unless Executive and the Company agree on an alternative accounting firm or law firm, the accounting firm engaged by the Company for general tax
compliance purposes as of the day prior to the effective date of the Change in Control transaction shall perform the foregoing calculations. If the accounting firm so
engaged by the Company is serving as accountant or auditor for the individual, entity or group effecting the change in control transaction, the Company shall appoint
a nationally recognized accounting or law firm to make the determinations required by this Section 0. The Company shall bear all expenses with respect to the
determinations by such accounting or law firm required to be made hereunder. The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the accounting or
law firm engaged to make the determinations hereunder to provide its calculations, together with detailed supporting documentation, to Executive and the Company
within 15 calendar days after the date on which Executive’s right to a 280G Payment becomes reasonably likely to occur (if requested at that time by Executive or the
Company) or such other time as requested by Executive or the Company.

(e)    OFFSET. If Executive obtains other employment during the period of time in which the Company is required to make payments to Executive pursuant to
Section 1(d)(i) above, the amount of any such remaining payments or benefits to be provided to Executive shall be reduced by the amount of compensation and
benefits earned by Executive from such other employment through the end of such period. For purposes of this Section 1(e), Executive shall have an obligation to
inform the Company regarding Executive’s employment status following termination and during the period of time in which the Company is making payments to
Executive under Section 1(d)(i) above.

(f)    ACCRUED OBLIGATIONS. As used in this Agreement, “Accrued Obligations” shall mean the sum of (i) any portion of Executive’s accrued but unpaid
Base Salary through the date of death or termination of employment for any reason, as the case may be; (ii) any compensation previously earned but deferred by
Executive (together with any interest or earnings thereon) that has not yet been paid and that is not otherwise to be paid at a later date pursuant to the executive
deferred compensation plan of the Company, if any, and (iii) any reimbursements that Executive is entitled to receive under Section 3A(d)(i) of the Agreement.
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(g) NOTICE OF NON-RENEWAL. If the Company delivers a Non-Renewal Notice to Executive then, provided Executive offers reasonable transition of his
duties as may be requested by the Company (which such transition shall not extend beyond the then-current expiration date of the Term), effective as of Executive’s
separation from service from the Company, Executive shall have the same rights and obligations hereunder as if the Company had terminated Executive’s
employment without Cause.

1. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; NON-COMPETITION; NON-SOLICITATION; AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS.

iv.CONFIDENTIALITY. Executive acknowledges that, while employed by the Company, Executive will occupy a position of trust and confidence. The
Company, its subsidiaries and/or affiliates shall provide Executive with “Confidential Information” as referred to below. Executive shall not, except as may be
required to perform Executive’s duties hereunder or as required by applicable law, without limitation in time, communicate, divulge, disseminate, disclose to others
or otherwise use, whether directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information regarding the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or affiliates.

    “Confidential Information” shall mean information about the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and their respective businesses, employees,
consultants, contractors, clients and customers that is not disclosed by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates for financial reporting purposes or
otherwise generally made available to the public (other than by Executive’s breach of the terms hereof) and that was learned or developed by Executive in the course
of employment by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, including (without limitation) any proprietary knowledge, trade secrets, data, formulae,
information and client and customer lists and all papers, resumes, and records (including computer records) of the documents containing such Confidential
Information. Executive acknowledges that such Confidential Information is specialized, unique in nature and of great value to the Company and its subsidiaries or
affiliates, and that such information gives the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates a competitive advantage. Executive agrees to deliver or return to the
Company, at the Company’s request at any time or upon termination or expiration of Executive’s employment or as soon thereafter as possible, all documents,
computer tapes and disks, records, lists, data, drawings, prints, notes and written information (and all copies thereof) furnished by the Company and its subsidiaries
or affiliates or prepared by Executive in the course of Executive’s employment by the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates. As used in this Agreement,
“subsidiaries” and “affiliates” shall mean any company controlled by, controlling or under common control with the Company.

v.NON-COMPETITION. In consideration of this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration provided hereunder, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged by Executive, Executive hereby agrees and covenants that, during Executive’s employment hereunder and for a period of twelve (12)
months thereafter (the “Restricted Period”), Executive shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly, engage in or become
associated with a Competitive Activity. 
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For purposes of this Section 2(b), (i) a “Competitive Activity” means any business or other endeavor involving Similar Products if such business or endeavor is in a
country (including the United States) in which the Company (or any of its businesses) provides or planned to provide during Executive’s employment hereunder such
Similar Products; (ii) “Similar Products” means any products or services that are the same or similar to any of the types of products or services that the Company (or
any of its businesses) provides, has provided or planned to provide during Executive’s employment hereunder; and (iii) Executive shall be considered to have become
“associated with a Competitive Activity” if Executive becomes directly or indirectly involved as an owner, principal, employee, officer, director, independent
contractor, representative, stockholder, financial backer, agent, partner, member, advisor, lender, consultant or in any other individual or representative capacity with
any individual, partnership, corporation or other organization that is engaged in a Competitive Activity. 

Executive acknowledges that Executive’s covenants under this Section 2(b) are a material inducement to the Company’s entering into this Agreement. Further,
Executive acknowledges that the restrictions set forth in this provision are reasonable and not greater than necessary to protect and maintain the proprietary and other
legitimate business interests of the Company, and that the enforcement of these restrictions would not prevent Executive from earning a livelihood.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive may make and retain investments during the Restricted Period, for investment purposes only, in less than one percent (1%)
of the outstanding capital stock of any publicly-traded corporation engaged in a Competitive Activity if the stock of such corporation is either listed on a national
stock exchange or on the NASDAQ National Market System if Executive is not otherwise affiliated with such corporation. Executive acknowledges that Executive’s
covenants under this Section 2(b) are a material inducement to the Company’s entering into this Agreement.

vi.NON-SOLICITATION OF EMPLOYEES. Executive recognizes that Executive will possess Confidential Information about other employees, consultants and
contractors of the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates relating to their education, experience, skills, abilities, compensation and benefits, and inter-personal
relationships with suppliers to and customers of the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates. Executive recognizes that the information Executive will possess about
these other employees, consultants and contractors is not generally known, is of substantial value to the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates in developing their
respective businesses and in securing and retaining customers, and will be acquired by Executive because of Executive’s business position with the Company.
Executive agrees that, during Executive’s employment hereunder and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter, Executive will not, directly or indirectly, hire or
solicit or recruit any employee of (i) the Company and/or (ii) its subsidiaries and/or affiliates with whom Executive has had direct contact during Executive’s
employment hereunder, in each case, for the purpose of being employed by Executive or by any business, individual, partnership, firm, corporation or other entity on
whose behalf Executive is acting as an agent, representative or employee and that Executive will not convey any such Confidential Information or trade secrets about
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates to any other person except within the scope of Executive’s duties hereunder.
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vii.NON-SOLICITATION OF BUSINESS PARTNERS. During Executive’s employment hereunder, and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter, Executive
shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company, persuade or encourage any business partners or business affiliates of (i) the Company and/or (ii) any of
its subsidiaries and/or affiliates with whom Executive has direct contact during his employment hereunder, in each case, to cease doing business with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or affiliates or to engage in any business competitive with the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or affiliates.

viii.PROPRIETARY RIGHTS; ASSIGNMENT. All Employee Developments (defined below) shall be considered works made for hire by Executive for the
Company or, as applicable, its subsidiaries or affiliates, and Executive agrees that all rights of any kind in any Employee Developments belong exclusively to the
Company. In order to permit the Company to exploit such Employee Developments, Executive shall promptly and fully report all such Employee Developments to
the Company. Except in furtherance of Executive’s obligations as an employee of the Company, Executive shall not use or reproduce any portion of any record
associated with any Employee Development without prior written consent of the Company or, as applicable, its subsidiaries or affiliates. Executive agrees that in the
event actions of Executive are required to ensure that such rights belong to the Company under applicable laws, Executive will cooperate and take whatever such
actions are reasonably requested by the Company, whether during or after the Term, and without the need for separate or additional compensation. “Employee
Developments” means any idea, know-how, discovery, invention, design, method, technique, improvement, enhancement, development, computer program, machine,
algorithm or other work of authorship, whether developed, conceived or reduced to practice during or following the period of employment, that (i) concerns or relates
to the actual or anticipated business, research or development activities, or operations of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, or (ii) results from or is
suggested by any undertaking assigned to Executive or work performed by Executive for or on behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, whether
created alone or with others, during or after working hours, or (iii) uses, incorporates or is based on Company equipment, supplies, facilities, trade secrets or
inventions of any form or type. All Confidential Information and all Employee Developments are and shall remain the sole property of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates. Executive shall acquire no proprietary interest in any Confidential Information or Employee Developments developed or acquired during the
Term. To the extent Executive may, by operation of law or otherwise, acquire any right, title or interest in or to any Confidential Information or Employee
Development, Executive hereby assigns and covenants to assign to the Company all such proprietary rights without the need for a separate writing or additional
compensation. Executive shall, both during and after the Term, upon the Company’s request, promptly execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the Company all such
assignments, confirmations of assignment, certificates, and instruments, and shall promptly perform such other acts, as the Company may from time to time in its
discretion deem necessary or desirable to evidence, establish, maintain, perfect, enforce or defend the Company’s rights in Confidential Information and Employee
Developments.

ix.COMPLIANCE WITH POLICIES AND PROCEDURES. During the period that Executive is employed with the Company hereunder, Executive shall adhere
to the policies and
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standards of professionalism set forth in the policies and procedures of the Company and IAC as they may exist from time to time.

(g)    SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS. The obligations contained in this Section 2 shall, to the extent provided in this Section 2, survive the termination or
expiration of Executive’s employment with the Company and, as applicable, shall be fully enforceable thereafter in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. If it
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that any restriction in this Section 2 is excessive in duration or scope or is unreasonable or unenforceable under
applicable law, it is the intention of the parties that such restriction may be modified or amended by the court to render it enforceable to the maximum extent
permitted by applicable law.

2. ASSIGNMENT; SUCCESSORS. This Agreement is personal in its nature and none of the parties hereto shall, without the consent of the others, assign or
transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder; provided, that the Company may assign this Agreement to, or allow any of its obligations to be
fulfilled by, or take actions through, any affiliate of the Company and, in the event of the merger, consolidation, transfer, or sale of all or substantially all of the assets
of the Company (a “Transaction”) with or to any other individual or entity, this Agreement shall, subject to the provisions hereof, be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of such successor and such successor shall discharge and perform all the promises, covenants, duties, and obligations of the Company hereunder, and in the
event of any such assignment or Transaction, all references herein to the “Company” shall refer to the Company’s assignee or successor hereunder.

3. WITHHOLDING. The Company shall make such deductions and withhold such amounts from each payment and benefit made or provided to Executive
hereunder, as may be required from time to time by applicable law, governmental regulation or order.

4. SECTION 409A OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.

x.This Agreement is not intended to constitute a “nonqualified deferred compensation plan” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, and the rules and regulations issued thereunder (“Section 409A”).  It is intended that any amounts payable under this Agreement and the
Company’s and Executive’s exercise of authority or discretion hereunder shall comply with and avoid the imputation of any tax, penalty or interest under Section
409A of the Code. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted consistent with that intent. In no event shall the Company be required to pay Executive any
“gross-up” or other payment with respect to any taxes or penalties imposed under Section 409A with respect to any benefit paid to Executive hereunder.

xi.For purposes of this Agreement, a “Separation from Service” occurs when Executive dies, retires or otherwise has a termination of employment with the
Company that constitutes a “separation from service” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)(1), without regard to the optional alternative
definitions available thereunder.
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xii.If Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(i) as of the date of Executive’s Separation from Service,
Executive shall not be entitled to any payment or benefit pursuant to Section 1(d) that constitutes nonqualified deferred compensation under Section 409A until the
earlier of (i) the date which is six (6) months after her Separation from Service for any reason other than death, or (ii) the date of Executive’s death. The provisions of
this paragraph shall only apply if, and to the extent, required to avoid the imputation of any tax, penalty or interest pursuant to Section 409A. Any amounts otherwise
payable to Executive upon or in the six (6) month period following Executive’s Separation from Service that are not so paid by reason of this Section 6(c) shall be
paid (without interest) as soon as practicable (and in all events within thirty (30) days) after the date that is six (6) months after Executive’s Separation from Service
(or, if earlier, as soon as practicable, and in all events within thirty (30) days, after the date of Executive’s death).

xiii.To the extent that any reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement is taxable to Executive, Executive shall provide the Company with documentation of the
related expenses promptly so as to facilitate the timing of the reimbursement payment contemplated by this paragraph, and any reimbursement payment due to
Executive pursuant to such provision shall be paid to Executive on or before the last day of Executive’s taxable year following the taxable year in which the related
expense was incurred. Such reimbursement obligations pursuant to this Agreement are not subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit and the amount of
such benefits that Executive receives in one taxable year shall not affect the amount of such benefits that Executive receives in any other taxable year.

xiv.In no event shall the Company be required to pay Executive any “gross-up” or other payment with respect to any taxes or penalties imposed under Section
409A with respect to any benefit paid to Executive hereunder. The Company agrees to take any reasonable steps requested by Executive to avoid adverse tax
consequences to Executive as a result of any benefit to Executive hereunder being subject to Section 409A, provided that Executive shall, if requested, reimburse the
Company for any incremental costs (other than incidental costs) associated with taking such steps. All payments to be made upon a termination of employment under
this Agreement may only be made upon a “separation from service” under Section 409A.

xv.For purposes of Section 409A, Executive’s right to receive any “installment” payments pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as a right to receive a
series of separate and distinct payments.

5. HEADING REFERENCES. Section headings in this Agreement are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of this
Agreement for any other purpose. References to “this Agreement” or the use of the term “hereof” shall refer to these Standard Terms and Conditions and the
Employment Agreement attached hereto, taken as a whole.

6. REMEDIES FOR BREACH. Executive expressly agrees and understands that Executive will notify the Company in writing of any alleged breach of this
Agreement by the Company, and the Company will have thirty (30) days from receipt of Executive’s notice to cure any such breach. Executive expressly agrees and
understands that in the event of any termination of
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Executive’s employment by the Company during the Term, the Company’s contractual obligations to Executive shall be fulfilled through compliance with its
obligations under Section 1 of the Standard Terms and Conditions.

    Executive expressly agrees and understands that the remedy at law for any breach by Executive of Section 2 of the Standard Terms and Conditions will be
inadequate and that damages flowing from such breach are not usually susceptible to being measured in monetary terms. Accordingly, it is acknowledged that, upon
Executive’s violation of any provision of such Section 2, the Company shall be entitled to obtain from any court of competent jurisdiction immediate injunctive relief
and obtain a temporary order restraining any threatened or further breach as well as an equitable accounting of all profits or benefits arising out of such violation.
Nothing shall be deemed to limit the Company’s remedies at law or in equity for any breach by Executive of any of the provisions of this Agreement, including
Section 2, which may be pursued by or available to the Company.

7. WAIVER; MODIFICATION. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants, or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of
such term, covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of, or failure to insist upon strict compliance with, any right or power hereunder at any one
or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or times. This Agreement shall not be modified in any respect except by
a writing executed by each party hereto.

8. SEVERABILITY. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any portion of this Agreement is in violation of any law or public policy,
only the portions of this Agreement that violate such law or public policy shall be stricken. All portions of this Agreement that do not violate any statute or public
policy shall continue in full force and effect. Further, any court order striking any portion of this Agreement shall modify the stricken terms as narrowly as possible to
give as much effect as possible to the intentions of the parties under this Agreement.

9. INDEMNIFICATION. The Company shall indemnify and hold Executive harmless for acts and omissions in Executive’s capacity as an officer, director or
employee of the Company to the maximum extent permitted under applicable law; provided, however, that neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates shall indemnify Executive for any losses incurred by Executive as a result of acts described in Section 1(c) of this Agreement.

[The Signature Page Follows]
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ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 

Date:

Angi Inc.

/s/ Oisin Hanrahan    
By: Oisin Hanrahan
Title: CEO

/s/ Kulesh Shanmugasundaram    
                Kulesh Shanmugasundaram



EXHIBIT A

The following sets forth terms that apply to the restricted stock unit awards approved by the
Compensation Committee, unless otherwise specifically stated at the time of presentation of an
award.

Award Holder Kulesh Shanmugasundaram
Award Amount $2,000,000 value of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under the Angi Inc. 2017 Stock

and Annual Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), with the number of RSUs to be calculated by
dividing $2,000,000 by the closing sale price for a share of the Company’s Class A
common stock on the Award Date (rounded down to the nearest whole share).
Capitalized terms used (but not defined) in this Award Notice shall have the
meanings set forth in the Plan.

Award Date The date approved by the Compensation Committee (the date on which the last
director executes the written consent)

Vest Start Date March 25, 2021
Vesting Schedule Subject to Award Holder’s continued employment with Angi Inc. or its

subsidiaries, RSU award shall, subject to the provisions of the Plan, vest and
become exercisable in four equal installments, with 1/4 vesting on each of the first,
second, third and fourth anniversaries of your Vest Start Date.

Termination Except as may be provided in Employment Agreement, all unvested RSUs shall be
forfeited and canceled in their entirety upon such termination for any reason.
In addition, upon termination for Cause or resignation in anticipation of being
terminated for Cause, all RSUs shall be forfeited and canceled in their entirety upon
such termination or resignation. In addition, if following any termination of
employment for any reason, the Company becomes aware that during the two-year
period prior to such termination there was an event or circumstance that constituted
fraud (financial or otherwise) or that would have been grounds for termination for
Cause that caused, or is reasonably likely to cause, meaningful damage (economic,
reputational or otherwise) to the Company and/or any of its affiliates (the
“Underlying Event”), then all RSUs that remain outstanding shall be canceled and
forfeited in their entirety and if any portion of the RSUs vested after the Underlying
Event, the Company shall be entitled to recover at any time within two years after
such exercise any value received upon vesting.

Change in
Control

Change in Control as defined in the Plan.

100% acceleration of vesting for all RSUs if, during the two-year period following a
Change in Control, Award Holder’s employment is terminated by the Company
other than for Cause or Award Holder resigns for Good Reason (as such terms are
defined in the Plan).
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Impact of
Corporate
Transactions on
Award

In the event of a Corporate Transaction or Share Change (as such terms are
defined in the Plan), the Committee may and shall, respectively, adjust the
Awards as it deems equitable and appropriate in accordance with the Plan.

In the event of any other transaction that results in the common stock of the
Company no longer being publicly traded, the Committee shall have the
ability to adjust the Awards as it deems equitable and appropriate in a
manner it determines in its sole discretion. In any such case, equitable and
appropriate adjustments may include, without limitation: (a) the substitution
of shares of Angi Class A common stock underlying the Awards with
publicly-traded shares of the ultimate parent of the Company; or (b) the
creation of a valuation and/or liquidity mechanism for the underlying shares
of Angi Class A common stock underlying the awards which are no longer
publicly traded.

Dividend Rights No cash dividends will be paid on RSUs and/or on the shares of Angi Class
A common stock underlying the RSUs. Stock dividends, distributions and
extraordinary, significant non-recurring cash dividends may result in an
adjustment to the number of RSUs, as determined by the Committee or the
Board and as further provided by the Plan.

Form of Payout Vested RSUs are settled in the form of shares of Angi Class A common
stock.

Withholding
Taxes

Upon vesting, RSUs are settled net of amounts necessary to cover
withholding taxes, with shares of Angi Class A common stock withheld from
vested awards.

Terms and
Conditions:

Award Holder’s RSU award is subject to the related Terms and Conditions
and to the Plan, which are incorporated herein by reference. Copies of these
documents are also available upon request from Angi Inc. Human Resources
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification

I, Oisin Hanrahan, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 of Angi Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:            

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 7, 2021  /s/ OISIN HANRAHAN
Oisin Hanrahan

 Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification

I, Glenn H. Schiffman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 of Angi Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:            

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 7, 2021  /s/ GLENN H. SCHIFFMAN
Glenn H. Schiffman

 Interim Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Oisin Hanrahan, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to my knowledge:

(1)    the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2021 of Angi Inc. (the "Report") which this statement accompanies fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)); and

(2)    the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Angi Inc.

Dated: May 7, 2021  /s/ OISIN HANRAHAN
Oisin Hanrahan

 Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Glenn H. Schiffman, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to my knowledge:

(1)    the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2021 of Angi Inc. (the "Report") which this statement accompanies fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)); and

(2)    the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Angi Inc.

Dated: May 7, 2021  /s/ GLENN H. SCHIFFMAN
Glenn H. Schiffman

 Interim Chief Financial Officer


